Open Agenda , oK

Council

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny
Sub-Committee

Wednesday 6 October 2010
6.30 pm
Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB

Membership Reserves

Councillor Neil Coyle (Chair) Councillor Poddy Clark
Councillor David Noakes (Vice-Chair) Councillor Dan Garfield
Councillor Michael Bukola Councillor Eliza Mann
Councillor Denise Capstick Councillor Althea Smith

Councillor Darren Merrill
Councillor Victoria Mills
Councillor the Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.

Babysitting/Carers allowances

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting,
you may claim an allowance from the council. Please collect a claim form at the meeting.

Access

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible. Further details on building
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site:
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.

Contact Rachael Knight on 020 7525 7291 or email: rachael.knight@southwark.gov.uk

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting

Annie Shepperd ‘
Chief Executive PRINTED ON

Date: 28 September 2010 RECYCLED PAPER



outhoreK

Council
Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny
Sub-Committee
Wednesday 6 October 2010
6.30 pm
Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB
Order of Business
Item No. Title Page No.
PART A - OPEN BUSINESS
1. APOLOGIES
2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR
DEEMS URGENT
In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda
within five clear working days of the meeting.
3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS
Members to declare any personal interests and dispensation in respect of
any item of business to be considered at this meeting.
4. MINUTES 1-19
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Health and Adult Social
Care scrutiny sub-committee meeting held on 30 June 2010.
5. RESTRUCTURE OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES 20 -48
6. RESTRUCTURE OF SLAM SERVICES 49 - 66
7. NEW POLICY BRIEFINGS 67 -73

i) July 2010 Health White Paper
i) 'Equality Act 2010: The public sector equality duty' consultation
paper



Item No. Title

8. KEY REVIEW: EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENTS

9. CONSULTATIONS
i) Cancer treatment centre (Guy’s and St Thomas’)

10. WORK PROGRAMME

DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE
START OF THE MEETING.

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

DISCUSSION OF ANY CLOSED ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START
OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

Date: 28 September 2010

Page No.

74 -75

76



Agenda Item 4

outhoreeK.

Council

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY
SUB-COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee held on Wednesday
30 June 2010 at 7.00 pm at Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB

PRESENT: Councillor Neil Coyle (Chair)
Councillor David Noakes (Vice-chair)
Councillor Michael Bukola
Councillor Poddy Clark
Councillor Darren Merrill
Councillor Victoria Mills
Councillor the Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole

OFFICER Jane Fryer, Medical Director, NHS Southwark

SUPPORT: Sean Morgan, Dir. Performance and Corp. Affairs, NHS Southwark
Susanna White, CE NHS Southwark & Strategic Dir. Southwark
Health and Community Services

Sally Lingard, Assoc. Dir. Communications & Marketing, KCH
Frances O’Callaghan, Dir. Performance & Delivery, KHP

Sarah Feasey, Principal lawyer
Cathryn Grimshaw, Senior lawyer
Rachael Knight, Scrutiny project manager

LOCAL Emma Beamish, Albany Action Group
REPRESENTATIVES: Ann Fox, National Childbirth Trust

Martin Saunders, Southwark LINk

Tom White, Southwark Pensioners’ Action Group

APOLOGIES

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Denise Capstick. The chair
also announced a change to the sub-committee’s membership: Councillor Darren
Merrill has replaced Councillor Keadean Rhoden.

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Wednesday 30 June 2010




NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

2.1

There were no urgent items.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

3.1

Disclosures of personal non-prejudicial interests were declared as follows:
Councillor Coyle as a member of the Guy’'s and St Thomas’ Foundation Trust
(GSTT); Councillor Noakes as a member of the King’s College Hospital Foundation
Trust and former member of the GSTT board of representatives; and CliIr the Right
Reverend Emmanuel Oyewole as member of GSTT and the Dr Hossain & Dr
Persadh Surgery, Lister Primary Care Centre.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR

4.1 Councillor David Noakes was appointed as the sub-committee vice-chair.
MINUTES
5.1 The minutes of the Health and Social Care scrutiny sub-committee meeting held on

17 March 2010 were accepted as a correct record.

INTRODUCTORY OFFICER BRIEFINGS

6.1

6.2

6.3

As an introduction to this item, the chair shared statistics on Southwark’s
demographics and related health issues. For example; that the borough is the ninth
most deprived nationally, a measurement of economic factors that significantly
impact health; and that despite the borough’s comparatively young population
Southwark has an increasing prevalence of dementia. He highlighted that the sub-
committee has just five further meetings during the 2010/11 civic year and that
members are likely to be presented with many issues regarding changes to local
health services, in addition to the topic(s) that they select to review.

Susanna White, chief executive of NHS Southwark and strategic director of
Southwark’s health and community services, welcomed the new members and
remarked that the sub-committee has never faced such difficult circumstances as
at present, or been as needed, in helping to work out how people in Southwark can
be provided with the right care, with less money: The council’s current budget for
health and community services will be reduced by 25% over a period of three years
- from approximately £90 million to £65 million. She explained that this impels the
need to look carefully at how a different system could still keep people safe. The
new personalisation scheme will be brought into an environment of more controls
but smaller budgets. She hopes that the sub-committee will be able to help identify
how this can be achieved.

Regarding the budget for services provided by NHS Southwark, this will not be
reduced, but there are financial pressures due to Southwark’s changing

2

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Wednesday 30 June 2010




6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

demographics and the need to provide additional procedures, etc. The chief
executive stated that this similarly compels re-modelling, as budgets would be
approximately £90 million adrift in five years time, unless there are changes. The
proposals for re-modelled and altered services will therefore be brought to this sub-
committee.

NHS Southwark will also be looking for South London and Maudsley (SLAM) to
reduce the costs of their mental health services. This is already outlined in the
strategic plan, but members will be informed about the emerging details for service
change.

The chief executive also noted that a Health White Paper will soon be published by
the new government, which is expected to outline proposals for GPs to lead
commissioning. She commented that Jane Fryer, the NHS Southwark medical
director, is a GP herself and will attend the sub-committee’s meetings, providing a
key link to the PCT.

Members requested further information about the potential change in the White
Paper regarding GPs taking up the commissioning role that is currently held by the
PCT. The chief executive responded that she cannot really clarify until the White
Paper is available, but that the Secretary of State’s intention is for the
approximately £80 billion NHS budget (including % billion in Southwark) to go to
GPs to commission local services via consortia, as they are most in touch with
local people.

She also confirmed that some GP lead commissioning has existed in Southwark
for the last four to five years and that GPs are key in leading discussions, so would
be extending beyond an advisory role to having real budgets and responsibilities.
The medical director commented that the PCT would need to ensure that GPs are
prepared as commissioners.

Members queried how much thought at this stage the PCT had given to how it
would manage consultation with the scrutiny sub-committee and public
engagement, in view of the scale of expected changes.

The chief executive responded that this is something for scrutiny to discuss. She
added that the PCT has not before been asked to do anything as significantly
different as this; that it will need to set out an overview of its plans, but will also
need to make changes more quickly than in the past,- even to manage this year’'s
budget.

Members commented that the council as a whole will need to think about how to
include the public more in such decision-making. The medical director reasoned
that it would be wise to wait for the Health White Paper, but emphasised that
another key message from the Secretary of State for Health is his intention to
strengthen public and patient involvement.

The chair welcomed Frances O’Callaghan, director of performance and delivery,
King’s Health Partnership (KHP). The director circulated booklets about KHP and
its strategic framework, and briefed members on the key points (see Appendix A).
She noted, for example, that KHP is one of only 5 Academic Health Science

3

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Wednesday 30 June 2010




Centres in England; that it includes 21 clinical academic groups (CAGs); and that a
major agenda for the partnership within the context of the economic turndown is to
support efficiency while also supporting excellence.

6.12 Inresponse to members’ queries, the director explained that KHP is funded equally
by the four partner organisations. This provides a core budget of close to £1.5
million, which covers salaries, support costs and allows some discretionary
spending on research projects. At this stage there is no formal guarantee for the
level of future funding: the partners have agreed to re-negotiate the budget
annually.

6.13 The director added that KHP is currently working on Key Performance Indicators,
and would be happy to share these in due course. She added that the partnership
aspires is to ensure that research results from King’s College London are adopted
in practice as early as possible and used to shape best practice; and to work out
how to cross the apparent divide between physical and mental health.

6.14 Sarah Feasey, principal lawyer, Southwark council, explained her role in
supporting the sub-committee by providing legal advice on constitutional points; the
sub-committee’s statutory powers; and substantive issues. She introduced her
colleague, Cathryn Grimshaw, who is likely to attend subsequent meetings in this
capacity.

6.15 The principal lawyer explained the sub-committee’s powers in relation to local
health services and the impact of the current financial climate. NHS trusts, PCTs
and Foundation Trusts have a statutory duty to provide Health scrutiny committees
with requested information and to consult with them on proposed service changes
or developments. It is up to the sub-committee to decide whether a proposed
change is a substantial variation and this impacts the requisite level of consultation.
However, even when members deem a proposed change to be a substantial
variation, this does not oblige the sub-committee to scrutinise the proposal.

6.16 The sub-committee also has a role in considering the quality of an NHS trust’s
planned consultation. Consequently, if members are not satisfied that the proposed
change is in the interests of the health service, or has concerns that the
consultation was inadequate, it can ultimately refer its concerns to the Secretary of
State, who can potentially challenge the trust. Members were informed that there
are exceptions, however, such as when a trust believes that there is a risk to
patient welfare or safety: It can then immediately terminate a service without
consulting either the sub-committee, service users or local residents, etc. It should,
however, inform the health scrutiny committee of its decision and actions, - and of
its plans for replacement services.

6.17 Officers have recently discussed how the trusts inform the sub-committee about
proposed changes. A template format is proposed to help members decide if they
require further information, or want to discuss with the trusts the plans for
consultation. The template included in the agenda papers for item 7 was flagged as
an example.

6.18 Tom White, Southwark Pensioners’ Action Group, spoke to the sub-committee
about the proposed changes to drug and alcohol treatment services at Marina

4

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Wednesday 30 June 2010




House. [The 2009/10 sub-committee had responded to formal consultation on
these changes in January 2010.] Mr White was concerned that there are
outstanding issues about the changes and about the adequacy of the consultation.
In particular, he raised queries about the provision for self-referral. He proposed
that the sub-committee hold a meeting specifically about the changes, as he
believed that the concerns warranted referral to the Secretary of State. He
suggested that the additional meeting be used for members to consider all the
relevant information from officers and his related correspondence.

6.19 Members opted to discuss this issue further when considering the sub-committee’s
work programme under item 8.

RESOLVED:

1. That members are invited to suggest improvements to the ‘trigger template’ for
substantial variations on an on-going, ad-hoc basis;

2. That the ‘trigger template’ could be amended to request more information about the
service user perspective of proposed changes; for example that the trust be
requested to list the groups/individuals to be consulted if this is still to take place; or
to outline the response to date from people needing support;

3. That regarding service variations outlined on future trigger templates that are
circulated via email between meetings, members are invited to forward related
questions or requests for more information to the scrutiny officer
(rachael.knight@southwark.gov.uk), for these to be submitted to the relevant trust
before meetings occur. This will help ensure more detailed answers are available
prior to and when the sub-committee meets.

4, That should members raise several questions on a future issue, the chair and vice-
chair would decide in consultation with other members whether a trust
representative be requested to attend either the next scheduled meeting or a
special meeting to provide a fuller briefing.

PROPOSED SERVICE VARIATIONS

7.1 The NHS Southwark medical director referred to the trigger template on proposed
changes to vascular surgery services at King’s Health Partners (KHP). She
commented that this is an example of the type of service change notification that
the sub-committee is likely to receive more often. She explained that currently both
Guy’s and St Thomas’ hospitals (GSTT) and King’s College Hospital (KCH) provide
vascular surgery services and that the proposal is to concentrate these on one site.
This would achieve savings and patient benefits, as the combined volume of
treatments would increase associated learning for the consultants. She clarified
that the template provides a broad outline of the proposed changes and that the
sub-committee was being asked whether it agrees.

5

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Wednesday 30 June 2010




7.2

7.3

Members discussed the proposals and whether to request further information. It
was felt that the changes do not amount to a substantial variation, partly due to the
numbers of patients involved, and as this type of surgery is not similar to ongoing
treatments that require patients to attend regular appointments.

Members also commented that there seemed to be no specific reason to challenge
the proposals, but that it would be of interest to know whether doctors with the
necessary expertise would still be based at the King’s site, should emergency
surgery be necessary. It was agreed that this query be raised with KCH.

RESOLVED:

1. That a response be sent to KHP stating that the sub-committee is broadly in
agreement with the proposed process, including the plan not to undertake
formal consultation; and

2. That KHP be requested to clarify, however, whether staff with the requisite
expertise will still be based at the King’s site, in order to carry out
emergency vascular surgery.

8. WORK PROGRAMMING AND SCOPING

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

The chair proposed, and members agreed, that the sub-committee interview the
cabinet member for Health and Adult Social Care at its 29 November meeting.

The scrutiny project manager outlined the process for health scrutiny committees
to provide feedback on Quality Accounts (QAs). These are performance reports
that NHS providers are required to publish annually. She commented that
Southwark and a number of other local authorities are raising queries with the
Department of Health regarding the provision for Health OSCs to assess QAs for
national NHS providers: Southwark had been requested in 2009/10 to provide the
national scrutiny response (in effect on behalf of health OSCs across the country)
to the QA for NHS Direct, as their head office is located in the borough. The sub-
committee would be informed of the DoH response.

Regarding the proposal from Tom White for an additional meeting regarding
services at Marina House, members suggested that clarification first be sought
from NHS Southwark, in particular about the provision for self-referral. It was
agreed that the reply be shared with all members and an informal meeting held to
decide whether to arrange a separate formal meeting.

Members discussed the issues that they would request PCT officers to clarify.
These included, for example, the adequacy of the related consultation and the
viability of co-locating across both sites the services that were to be moved to
Blackfriars centre.

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Wednesday 30 June 2010




8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

Members considered again the issues raised earlier in the meeting by the Albany
Action Group. It was highlighted that the women who had used the Albany
midwifery seemed very happy with the service, however, that KCH seems to be
consulting widely about what replacement would be provided. Members also
queried what aspect of this issue the sub-committee would scrutinise, in order to
help ensure that people in Peckham have high quality services, as the mothers
have openly admitted that they accept that the practice has been dissolved and are
not expecting it to be re-instated. There was also discussion on whether to review
the KCH decision, and so assess whether the trust should change its website
statement regarding the cause for the closure.

Members suggested that the sub-committee write to KCH raising some of the
concerns that the Albany group had highlighted and asking whether the trust would
consider altering its website statement.

The chair invited members to propose review topics for the 2010/11 year. Three
key suggestions were made as follows:
- an assessment of the use of Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) — to focus
on examples from health and/or social care services;
- NHS Southwark services for older people, - in particular personalisation and
how Southwark will respond to a significantly reduced income;
- how to improve integrated services.

The members who had suggested these topics agreed to develop a scoping
document to share with the sub-committee, in order to clarify their review
suggestion and outline how it could be approached.

RESOLVED:

1. That ClIr Dixon-Fyle, Cabinet Member for Health & Adult Social Care, be
invited to be interviewed at the sub-committee’s 29 November 2010
meeting.

Quality Accounts

2. That a paper be prepared for the 6 October meeting that outlines:

- the sub-committee’s role and options in relation to Quality Accounts;

- the related timeframe;

- a list of the service providers from whom the sub-committee expects to
receive a QA in early 2011; and

- the response from the DoH regarding the role of local scrutiny committees in
reviewing regional or national service providers, such as NHS Direct.

Changes to drug and alcohol treatment services at Marina House

3. That NHS Southwark be requested to provide the following information
within two weeks:

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Wednesday 30 June 2010




- Whether officers have looked further into the viability of co-locating the
provision of the original services for drug and alcohol treatment based at
Marina House, and those provided by the criminal justice system, at both the
Marina House and Blackfriars sites (as requested at the previous sub-
committee’s 17 March 2010 meeting), and if so, what has been the outcome;

- whether NHS Southwark believes that it carried out the consultation on this
service change according to the relevant statutory requirements and good
practice guidance;

- whether the issue regarding the reduction of self-referral has been properly
consulted on and resolved.

4. That Tom White, Southwark Pensioners’ Action Group, be invited to submit
related documents regarding the quality of the consultation and the issue of
self-referral.

5. That members be invited to an informal meeting in July, to consider NHS
Southwark’s response to the above request and the papers from Tom
White, with the view to decide whether to schedule an additional formal
meeting to further explore this issue.

Albany Midwifery Practice

6. That a letter be sent to King’s College Hospital (KCH) requesting the
following:

- that KCH review the statement on their website that the Albany Midwifery
Practice was closed due to safety concerns, and considers whether it would
amend this to statement to refer to management rather than safety reasons;

- that KCH provide appropriate details about whether it responded formally to
the AIMS and NCT critique of the CMACE report; and if it didn’t whether it will
do so now;

7. That KCH be encouraged to include as many of the positive elements of the
Albany Midwifery Practice in the replacement service as possible.

Reviews

8. That the 3 members who offered to each scope a proposed review topic,
submit their proposal to all members within two weeks of the meeting - i.e.
by Wednesday 14 July (Clir Coyle on Equality Impact Assessments; Clir
Noakes on Older People’s Services and Personalisation; Clir Bukola on
Improving integrated services);

9. That all sub-committee members be invited to comment on and suggest
amendments to the proposals within a week; and

10. That all members then be requested to rank the 3 proposals according to
their preferred priority — with the highest ranked suggestion forming the
basis for the next HASC sub-committee scrutiny work.

8

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Wednesday 30 June 2010




9.

DEPUTATION FROM ALBANY MIDWIFERY PRACTICE

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

Note: the sub-committee agreed to a change of the agenda sequence so that this
deputation followed item 5.

Emma Beamish, a founder of the Albany Action Group of parents who had used
the Albany Midwifery Practice, was invited to address the sub-committee as the
deputation’s key speaker. She outlined the reasons for the deputation and
explained features of the practice that had been particularly valued: when an
expectant mother booked in, for example, she was appointed a midwife to care for
her throughout her pregnancy, as well as throughout labour and for 30 days after
the child’s birth. Regarding the closure of the practice, she commented that when
King’'s College Hospital (KCH) had terminated the practice’s contract it was stated
that this was necessary for safety reasons. She added that the KCH risk assessors
had not raised problems with the midwifery and that to date the Action Group felt
that the hospital had not sufficiently explained what the problems were.

Ms Beamish further stated that KCH had commissioned a report from the Centre
for Maternal and Child Enquiries (CMACE) with recommendations, but that the
report did not recommend that the practice be closed. She added that because
safety reasons were used, this meant that there was no need to consult with local
parents; that the practice was therefore terminated very quickly; and that parents
have not in the meantime had access to any service comparable to that provided
by the Albany midwifery. She requested that the sub-committee look at the process
used by KCH to reach their decisions about closing the practice.

Ann Fox from the National Childbirth Trust (NCT) explained that the NCT would not
normally become involved in local decisions, but was doing so in this case as the
Albany Practice had received national and international awards and had used a
model that was about to be copied across the country. She added that
representatives of the NCT had met with KCH and had requested that the
statement on the KCH website regarding the safety reasoning for the closure be
changed to issues regarding management.

It was clarified again that the deputation was requesting the sub-committee to
scrutinise the process by which KCH had reached their decision to close the
practice, including the evidence on which the decision was based.

Members responded to the deputation with comments and queries. Key points
raised included as follows:

Members referred to the notes from a meeting on 28 April 2010 between members
of the Action Group and officers from NHS Southwark and KCH. It was asked
whether KCH has recruited new midwives and whether there is currently a gap in
the service. Ms Beamish responded that the gap had been covered but not with the
same service.

Members queried whether the next steps by KCH as outlined in the minutes had
taken place, - such as the involvement of local mothers in the recruitment of

9

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Wednesday 30 June 2010




9.9

9.10

9.1

9.12

9.13

10

maternity staff. Ms Beamish confirmed that those steps had been taken. She
emphasised, however, that the more significant issue was the KCH allegation that
the Albany practice model had been unsafe. She commented that the Albany
model saves money and that it is important that the reputation of the Albany
practice remains clean, so that the model can be contracted elsewhere.

Members asked whether mothers were satisfied with the process going forward for
replacing the service and suggested that if the sub-committee were to scrutinise
the decision process members would be interested to see what replacement had
been established and to consider the transition. Ms Beamish stated that there had
been an immense vacuum in the service when the Albany practice was first closed
and that mothers in Peckham who used the service had waited a long time for a
replacement. She added that there were currently two midwives at the Lister
practice (where the Albany midwifery had been located) who will provide booking
appointments, but should a mother request a homebirth, she would be referred to
another of the community maternity teams, which are understaffed.

Sally Lingard, associate director of communications and marketing, KCH,
explained that an aspect of the Albany service that mothers had wanted to retain
was that a named midwife be on call 24/7. She said that this was problematic due
to the EU working directive regarding working hours, but that new recruitment for
the replacement practice would be started at the end of the summer and would
include the provision for 24/7 on-call cover. She added that regarding homebirths,
if a mother were to request this option she would be given that choice.

Members queried why KCH had offered to employ the Albany practice midwives
when the service had been withdrawn due to safety concerns. Ms Beamish
referred to the 28 April meeting notes which state that KCH would be happy to
employ any of the Albany midwives and that parents had hoped that KCH would be
able hire the midwives and then allocate them back to the mothers they had been
working with through the Albany service. It was confirmed however, that none of
the seven midwives wanted to take up the recruitment offer from KCH. She
commented that the safety allegation therefore remains vague — as to whether the
model or the midwives were deemed unsafe. Sally Lingard responded that the
formal statement on the KCH website refers to patient safety.

Members asked whether KCH had responded to the NCT’s and the Association for
Improvement in Maternity Services’ (AIMS) critique of the CMACE report. Ann Fox
noted that CMACE had responded to the critique on its website and that the NCT
had had an email exchange with KCH, but neither NCT nor AIMS had received a
formal response to date.

The chair thanked the members of the Action group and the KCH officers for their
contributions and said that they would be notified of the sub-committee’s decision.

The meeting closed at 10.20pm.

10

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Wednesday 30 June 2010




11

I | { | A 1 4 (il KING'S
[ T B TY 110010 1 e HEALTH
| | ] bl h Iwib il e PARTNERS

An Academic Health Sciences Centre for London

Pioneering better health for all

Kings Health Partners — An Overview

Southwark Overview and Scrutiny Committee

30 June 2010

‘Q

Delivery
Icr:};;b Guy’s and St Thomas' [[[751 King’s College Hospital [[775] South London and Maudsley [[T75]
Sealge  commsmens ool I8 o omdon e iy
The partners —
four highly-performing institutions Page 1

Guy's and St. Thomas’

South London and the Maudsley

[ 1 b 10 i M KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS



12

South East London Heat Map Page2

Binge drinking adults

Deaths from smoking
Drug Misuse
Early deaths: Cancer

Early deaths: Heart disease
& stroke

Healthy eating adults
Hospital stays due to alcohol
Infant Mortality

Life expectancy

Mental lliness

Obese Adults

Obese Children

Physically active adults
Teenage Pregnancy
Tuberculosis

Violent Crime

Key
Worse than In line with Better than
London average London average London average
Source : Department of Health Community Health Profiles 2009
. [ 1 b 10 i M KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS

Our Vision Page 3

King’s Health Partners is pioneering better health and
well-being, locally and globally, through integrating
excellence...

in research

. [ 1) 19 ol i KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS



13

Our Mission Page 4

King’s Health Partners will become the UK’s leading AHSC. We will:

*Drive the integration of research, education and training and clinical care, for
the benefit of patients, through our new Clinical Academic Groups (CAGs).

*Consider all aspects of the health needs of our patients when they come to us
for help.

* Improve health and well-being across our ethnically and socially diverse
communities and work to reduce inequalities.

*Develop an AHSC that draws upon all academic expertise in medical science
and also in basic science, social science, law and humanities.

‘Deliver a radical shift in healthcare by identifying ‘at risk’ groups, based on
genotype and lifestyle, and helping them to avoid illness.

» Work innovatively with stakeholders in the redesign of care pathways,
including the delivery of care closer to home.

[ 1 b 10 i M KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS

Our Values and Guiding Principles Page’

* Always put our patients first

* Focus on pioneering research: by rapidly and efficiently translating new
discoveries.

* Provide innovative learning opportunities: by bringing together educational,
academic and clinical expertise.

* Work in partnership: by building on and extending clinical and academic
collaborations.

+  Transform the nature of healthcare: by moving from treatment towards
population screening and disease prevention.

* Deliver excellence
* Disseminate knowledge

» Exercise scholarship in everything we do: by being enquiring, reflective and
challenging to ensure that everything we do adds value.

* Beinclusive

[ 1 b 10 i M KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS



14

Our Strategic Objectives (1) Page

* Mental health services and physical health services work collaboratively
to treat the entire individual.

« Constantly seek to reduce costs and improve quality for the benefit of
patient care across the partnership and the wider health and social care
system.

« Underpin all these objectives by working with our stakeholders to build
information technology and resources to support our efforts.

« Establish, in collaboration with our stakeholders, an ‘Academy of
Apprentices’ to offer training opportunities to our local population in a
range of health related skills.

» Develop education programmes for staff and share with wider
healthcare community of south London and beyond

[ 1 b 10 i M KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS

Our Strategic Objectives (2) Page 7

* We will be in the top 10 globally, both clinically and academically, in the
fields of:

— Cardiovascular disease
— Transplantation, immunity and inflammation linked to disease
— Mental health and neurosciences
» We will build our capacity to address diseases that have a particularly

large impact on our local community, but also are important on a global
scale, in the areas of:

— Childhood diseases
— Diabetes and obesity
— Cancer

» Ensure our academic expertise is applied to all our clinical services to
pursue our tripartite mission.

[ 1 b 10 i M KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS



15

The whole patient pathway Page

Available evidence suggests that healthcare systems must cover, in an
integrated way, the whole patient pathway if we are to achieve:

« Optimal clinical care pathway design and implementation

« Engagement/commitment from all healthcare/social care professionals
involved in an individuals care

» Ashift in the mindset of staff — to focus on the performance of the
system, rather than an institution

* Public health goals
« Control of costs
» Effective commissioning

King’s Health Partners wishes to work with commissioners and partner
providers to achieve an integrated high quality cost-effective sustainable
healthcare system for south London.

[ 1 b 10 i M KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS

Development and engagement Page

Developing the proposals to become an AHSC

» Commitment by partners in 2008 and DH announced accreditation process
in autumn 2008

» Stakeholder events from October to December 2008
» Hosted international conference in March 2009

Strategy Development
 “Summer of Dialogue 2009” included events for all stakeholders
* Representation from all local Commissioners
* Mental health commissioner workshop Dec 2009 and quarterly workshops
through 2010
On going engagement
* Mental Health Partnership Board
» Commissioner Stakeholder Forum
» Representation on Clinical Academic Groups

[ 1 b 10 i M KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS



16

Guiding Principles for CAGS

Partner organisations are now focusing on becoming “CAG ready” via an internal
accreditation process and developing local engagement plans.

Page 10

» Partnerships with stakeholders — high level of engagement with
service users and others.

» Care pathway development is a cornerstone of CAG development —
key to meaningful engagement of stakeholders

» Bring together clinical and academic staff to deliver the ‘tripartite’
agenda — clinical, research, education and training working together to
improve the quality of services

» Success measured by outcomes and satisfaction for service users
» Development of joint plans — strategy, developments and efficiencies

* Integrate physical, psychological & social — emphasis on social
care, recovery and interface between acute and mental health services

* Enhance multi-disciplinary approaches — leadership & team working

k I 1} 190 ol W KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS

Page 11

Basic Science Institute

15. Mental Health 16. Child &
of Older Adults Adol 17. Addicti 18. Psychosis
& Dementia Mental Health
19. Behavioural & 20. Mood, Anxiety .
Developmental & Personality 21. Psych_ologlcal
. . Medical
Psychiatry Disorder

[ Health Services, Policy & Evaluation Institute ]

Page 11



17

Engaging with primary care Page 12

Primary Care and Public Health Research Group

* Membership includes: Professors of Primary Care & Public Health, PCT
Medical Directors, PEC & DPHs, provider Trusts, primary care practitioners

« Group aims: promoting health gain in the local population, prioritising
areas for future primary care/public health research and developing
supporting infrastructure, provide primary care/public health expertise
to KHP CAGs (identified members to provide input to CAGs)

Primary care representation on planning & development groups
» GP involvement currently being sought & funded
« Building on existing links and relationships at a service and planning level

* |dentifying how to engage GPs and others where strong links are necessary at
the CAG level e.g. Mood, Anxiety and Personality Disorder CAG

» Welcome suggestions about developing this further

[ 1 b 10 i M KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS

Engagement with broader stakeholders

» Broad and different stakeholders for clinical, teaching and training and
research and development aspects of King’s Health Partners.

+ Some stakeholders to be engaged on King’s Health Partners wide
basis e.g. pharma, MRC, Wellcome Trust, HIEC

« King’s Health Partners partner organisations continue to use
mechanisms developed at organisational level (including contributing
to borough based groups and committees)

* CAGs to develop plans for stakeholder engagement based around
their particular theme/services

» Particular opportunities based on care pathway development in SLaM

[ 1 b 10 i M KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS



KHP Executive

18

Professor Robert Lechler
Professor John Moxham
Professor Anne Greenough
Vacant

Frances O’Callaghan

Executive Director

Director of Clinical Strategy
Director of Education and Training
Director of Research

Director of Performance and Delivery

[ 1 b 10 i M KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS

Engagement and Involvement Page 15

*CAG Development

*Integrated care provided across a system

*Care provided out of hospital

*What can KHP do for the community it serves to add value?

*What are the markers of success?

[ 1 b 10 i M KING'S HEALTH PARTNERS



Agenda ltem 5 h

4™ August 2010

Dear Ms Kinnair
Restructure of Drug and Alcohol Treatment Services in Southwark

Thank you for your response to the scrutiny sub-committee’s questions arising
from our June 30™ meeting and for providing copies of much of your
correspondence with Tom White. However, committee members continue to
have concerns about both practical questions surrounding the service and the
robustness of the decision-making process.

We are considering devoting a special meeting of the committee to this matter
and wish to collect further evidence from the PCT/SLAM as to how the service
will work and the process undertaken to reach your decision. We would
therefore be very grateful if you could promptly provide the fullest information
you can on each of our questions below.

GP support

The January report to the PCT board noted that Southwark has 23 practices
where at least 1 GP has undertaken specialised training in the management
of substance misuse. Please can you advise whether more practices have
developed such capacity or plan to, and what is the geographical spread?

The committee is also interested to know if there are GPs or practices which
resist additional training or a specialism in this area and your plans to ensure
anyone seeking support can access it.

Satellite clinics

We note that the new model requires an additional 100 clients to be supported
in satellite clinics. What progress has been made on this? The committee is
keen to learn how satellites were identified, how staff are trained, how many
people are using the new support and where the new clinics are if possible
please?

Self referral

We are aware that the ability of clients to self refer has been raised by a
number of stakeholders, and the PCT response has been that this was a
development of the Primary Care Strategy, and subject to separate



20

consultation. However, the chair of Southwark NHS has stated on an email to
Mr White that “self referees at Blackfriars will continue to be seen”. Please
could you confirm whether this is the case, whether it represents a shift in
position and if so, whether it has an impact on the number of satellite clinic
places that will be required?

Consultation process

Thank you for responding to our previous question on the consultation
process. Please could you set out what impact assessment was undertaken
in respect of the client group, and whether there was any specific consultation
with or involvement of disabled people? It is the committee’s understanding
that the Disability Discrimination Act 2005 would require specific involvement
in this area as the outcome affects disabled people disproportionately (as
service users). Information on how this obligation was met would reassure the
committee that you have addressed all your statutory duties. Apologies for not
being clearer on this issue n the initial question which has meant you were
unable to provide a sufficient response previously.

Yours sincerely

Clir Neil Coyle Clir David Noakes

Cc:  Clir Dora Dixon-Fyle, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care
Dr Jane Fryer, Medical Director, NHS Southwark
Sean Morgan, Director of Performance and Corporate Affairs, NHS
Southwark
Susanna White, Chief Executive, NHS Southwark
Tom White, Southwark Pensioners Action Group



21

SOUTHWARK HEALTH ‘ SOCIAL CARE

Commissioning Directorate
Tel: 020 75253792
Fax: 020 75250450

160 Tooley Street
London SE1 2TZ

ClIr Neil Coyle and ClIr David Noakes

c/o Shelley Burke

Head of Overview and Scrutiny

Communities, Law & Governance Department
PO Box 64529

London SE1 5LX

www.southwarkpct.nhs.uk

26th August 2010

Dear Clirs Coyle and Noakes
Re: Restructuring Drug and Alcohol Treatment Services in Southwark

| write in response to your letter of 4 August 2010 requesting further information and clarity
regarding the consultation processes for the restructuring of drug and alcohol treatment services. |
appreciate that members of the committee continue to have concerns about both practical questions
surrounding the service and the robustness of the decision-making process regarding the restructure
and | hope the answers | have set out below address these concerns fully.

GP support

Training to enable GPs to provide effective treatment to patients is provided — Royal College of
Genral Practitioners (Level I). We currently have 23 GPs trained covering 49 practices and we are
planning to provide support to other practices through the development of polysystem hubs.
Further training for a cohort of GP’s to undertake RCPG level 1 is to take place this month.

The PCT and its partner agencies such as SLAM and Blenheim Community Drug Project (BCDP) have
ongoing contact with GP practices across the borough. For example, BCDP provide specialist psycho-
social and other support to surgeries and SLAM provides specialist support on alcohol-related
problems.

This type of contact will, in itself, enhance a GP’s capacity to manage clients with substance misuse
problems. It is particularly attractive to those GPs who have very small substance misuse caseloads
and therefore would not see specialist training as a priority. However, specialist training continues to
be available and the PCT and its partners continue to encourage surgeries to undertake this.

It should also be noted that anecdotal evidence from within and outside the borough indicates that
some GPs manage clients with substance misuse problems without recourse to specialist training or
specialist services. For example, some people with substance misuse problems are reluctant to
attend specialist services through fear of stigmatisation.

The PCT has encountered GPs who are reluctant to manage clients with substance misuse problems
and this is addressed in a number of ways including peer interventions. Where these are not
successful, practices are requested to clearly signpost substance misuse clients to other practices
that are willing to see them. We have experienced no resistance to this latter strategy.



22

Cllrs Coyle and Noakes
Restructuring Drug and Alcohol Treatment Services in Southwark page 2

Satellite clinics

it should also be noted that SLAM substance misuse services have been providing satellite clinics in
venues such as hostels long before the current proposal was mooted. These clinics are staffed by
existing substance misuse workers therefore additional training is not required.

Progress on identifying the numbers of patients who will require treatment in the south of the
Borough, together with possible venues for delivering this treatment, has begun. Re-assessments
and reviews of the care plans of those patients with complex needs are being undertaken by the
clinical teams within SLaM.

In terms of the location of future satellite clinics, a number of factors will be taken into
consideration. Central to this is the history of community opposition to the establishment of new
drug and alcohol services. in consequence, venues are likely to be premises that are already used to
provide similar services. These would include:

¢ GP surgeries

s Community drug services (e.g. the Kappa Project on Old Kent Road)

e Probation offices

e Hostels

Furthermore, once the precise configuration of the proposed Integrated Offender Management
Service is established, there may be capacity to provide a number of satellite clinics at Marina House.

Self referral
Clients self referring to SLaM services will continue to be assessed and given any treatment that is

immediately necessary.

As part of our strategy to increase the number of people entering into and remaining in drug
treatment, we have recently reviewed the model of service access, including direct access self-
referral. Self referral is likely to remain in place at all servicers staffed by workers from a range of
treatment providers

This will not have an impact on the number of satellite clinics that will be provided.

Consultation process

SLAM services see a number of clients whose drug use has led to their becoming disabled. For
example, a number of clients are now amputees as a consequence of injecting in their groin and legs.
That being the case, the needs of people with disabilities have always been integral to any service
planning and, in consequence, are not addressed as a separate issue.

Additionally, it is the experience of SLAM services that people with disabilities — and particularly
those with mobility issues — are often best served in satellite and community services. This has been
the practice in the past and it is felt to have been highly successful. The current proposals seek to
build on these practices, not undermine them.

The refurbished Blackfriars Road site will be full DDA compliant with enhanced provision for patients



23

Cllrs Coyle and Noakes
Restructuring Drug and Alcohol Treatment Services in Southwark page 3

| hope the above responses address the concerns of the sub-committee and | hope that we are now
able to move forward with fully implementing these changes which we believe will improve services
for people with drug and alcohol dependency.

Kind regardgs

Donna Kinnair DBE
Director of Commissioning and Nursing

Copy to: Clir Dora Dixon-Fyle, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care
Dr Jane Fryer, Medical Director, NHS Southwark Tessa Jowell MP
Sean Morgan, Director of Performance and Corporate Affairs, NHS Southwark
Susanna White, Chief Executive, NHS Southwark
Tom White, Southwark Pensioners Action Group



24
PALE

e

1 Background

Drug and Alcohol Services in Southwark

In Southwark, drug and alcohol misuse is managed across a range of specialist and
generalist agencies in both the public sector and the voluntary sector. These services
include community-based structured programmes such as counselling and
methadone maintenance, community-based informal programmes such as needle
exchange and advice and information services, and in-patient services such as in-
patient detoxification programmes.

Increasing emphasis is also being placed on the management of appropriate cases
of drug and alcohol misuse within primary care services such as general practices.

Blackfriars Community Drug and Alcohol Team (CDAT) and Marina House are two
specialist drug and alcohol agencies provided by the South London and Maudsley
NHS Foundation Trust (better known as SLAM). Both agencies provide a range of
community-based services from their respective locations in Southwark - CDAT in
the North of the borough (Blackfriars Road) and Marina House in the South
(Camberwell).

The History of SLAM Substance Misuse Services in Southwark

Both CDAT and Marina House existed before the creation of the SLAM NHS
Foundation Trust. CDAT was established in 1990 as part of the South London and
Guys Health Service. Marina House was established around the same time as part of
what was then the Bethlem and Maudsley Health Service.

In 1999 the two Health Services were merged as part of the creation of SLAM but
CDAT and Marina House continued to operate from two separate sites.

Current Service Provision

Substance misuse services are currently provided as follows:

Service Marina House CDAT

Commuhity Detox — Drugs/Alcohol

Community prescribing by specialist

Stimulant Service

Harm Reduction Service

Psychology Service

Structured counselling

Keyworking

Advice and Information

Advice on safer drug use and safer sex

Coffee morning

Service user group/coffee morning

Complementary therapies

2lele |l |2ie| L]l | il

Liaison ante natal clinic

Art Group

Injecting clinic

fleje | jeje]e L | il il g |2 a2

On-site dispensing

< |2 |2 ]

Needle exchange for clients

Alcohol group




Pave 2 29

{ }5 5 (1 I8 \o.fi‘é w ¥ S i Pt BN f&t CENaL $ERNVICES

1 W LAY e D RETAIRS Heye Bhew MISSED ; ] T He U R
TR T AL e SeeDh yeu B REVIEYY of THE Cenrgwah
THBT  NAVER wWhs b | wWouln Rgi yeu TR REMEMEEC TH
B 7k wWeR0S  Ualen pRE L GTHER Siaet oF TTRE (O
Beih e i LA BRnh oW HIT 6 et o Pehl Do CoMas e,

Fller  SLAM Db THE FOT. R Sony 2oy ] veAg Tewd

s

ATHE AR D HMeusE STAGE Wi BZed TRREW T A peve
W ER AHEY  WERE TS LU panEikA Hess€  YWWAS WMoevigh 31T3

s .Y
s

LE QN LE R Te BLpwidriaes o (everrt et DRUGE SERVIES,
NaT THRT 17 waxsep Te, But F Kegw TTART THE TE RS Gf

THE L BRASE STRTED THAT Semg Teqin of ORsG SERvies WAD T

{

BE CROVIDED BT “THS TIME SeeTheaRY  HNHs HELD A et

BT ™Mlsuwsle F o, B gens wf LORFERENSE TT ERfLAN

e N, SouTRWARYE WERE Donb. p FRIERD L MORE PSKED
ff

THE  WesTiert 1% 1T TROE TRAT BRR WA Meodst  WERE thev)

P SEnvicEs | BwD  YWHY O Hed  THey st VA f Cerpontpaie
/

TRE  CLopmssienin, E50 SEAVRES SO THIS WHAS wet TR

Mo DEONieg BAD GTER TABDE ; RND CTRERE WWikh BE A

T S B3V el : Lo - o IR J By s e bOMED sl Oof THE

. [
I

"~ R . . N ! £ ¥ N ¥, v, i, - SR
Poste s P MY MARD: S Bk ARk FIewiE 15 Pawyial, ww
PG Pogvaf 10 Biese  CTURTED TVHERE WL E B MERT B

1Y By Bdiae b Ylevds  on THe RET ed S WE wwERe bivan

" ra ’ l"-{ v -
Ties o g ot B e SR PR Y Sewtreinid SIS G Sunmifvirey

Gey L WP et 7Y SR RN AE THRey e o Ta v PWARILMESR TREG
ES

U o st b Eyn G ) YE AN {F Fany ! } , [ %‘\ LT h ¢ ; ‘w‘\\‘

03 o v e % ; — s S pe - Snhd Tou %t 5 - e i
sy Wby wWE S RRG WRT LeRgsirntte B o WE G v

ooy Sy ke VO RE T RER P WeT W SRee Ly PReviDe Blw W

Do e Ban Oe ey 58 Rveed Ve vy OWE BVTE  1RQWTEAD FTw

(x Mp e gy BELCouLEs ek fRe ROOE T

H

R Pt a6t )
o - S Ly e h et ., 10 [ N - IR % SRR Tt (o oy K
Led i, fe E R A I A R R L R LA I R A




N
-~
[y
pd
£

o

. . - o o 9 L] U FR A T ( -
U RESERED SanTHWARY:  MERWT Y SCALTINY L uMEITEL, e

Oowd  ROKED  THE (O AanD dlpM Te BATENDs B MeeTiv
v HEE MEETIN G ey WERL ReRsHLY Tewd THAT THE
LS THEY  MRD CTRKEN  wWelle ki LD ey e o
ARBT ARerE Sueeet (3g A (RePEL LBRITRTI N gy

SO LAESTED T HET  TRE PO pab LB S eute CenpanT

g Te LET BVEQTTIING weRDED (e peri,

£ TS MEETIRG , CTHRE AEY WeRRAN WA TTHAT SLaes
Bt THE 0T wRwTEY ey TRD ey BRAT  RE R,

5 LT ywpa s RGREED  CTHRT CTHET vy oucl BRL D Capfefin,

THE ey T SCRENTIREE PEETING WS RELo TR T eaey, 1R
BT TS SCRLTRILG MEsE TR , Leb s yN&aERE S RERISES THAT
THE PLT BRD S FIRD PRE0GLED MRETHER (oG TRTRN
Precessy  Doiotm@ny | Ard IWYTenn &6 Cein fafamb o Han iw
L STRARTED PeeTHER (oW SanPTe | BT oRIRG THE ROV
£ SePemingd ) wiad BLis et BLUMRST Beite poFew e
o f RERLTY MIDELRES T TTRE Ca RS TATSY
bp sTE0 Ly 9 wWeEERS , pbuerast ey Guoe tane Tee
AREY  $Howen BT LEAST B8 2 MowiTHS Ve TG pave
CoQuemimad Bt o THERS  HpvE nisT HEWw Tony  of TR,
i, DECIS)s R HopldvEr, J FHEY PR EREMED TR o lal
POESS  THRT TWEY wWERE Lol vyt T Hewt CREERED
cyTiey TR o RE TTRAT WwWipS e EiessiEn Gy R TRV
Gl e OB R j K EowtivgE  Membz Foi HEMTY | A STRE

OO e s BT e s Wl e RSELNE S % AWEY faeds Teul THE

L falY
O N B Ty St - BLEFERMERT RABT e BLEw CRREanY
A T T S O O O SR R S R L e N A R R

PRt e wut CTHE wEwW  CAREe TR Yo HAY R
W L i my e e Pamags Gy WS Waamauiin THER PyTiess
PR L VE v E S B A RGBSR RS L6 b oo,
VL tf S e ey pALET iR Lo A e ny PR
R O TR Ve taafly Dand ST RevE Y wwpy D EVELILD

el ey b RS RN A Sl ST ATIN L ey T SERVILE N SERD
/



2l e Y

(AL 01 THE §9057 AdLE  WMisete  ceNnart - THIS 05w

£ CRePER  TeR SeRTRTEN L LTS P cuAT oyt A few CRHND S

B g Yool Ao vwinw Te {B6GE TTTY, ARLTHER FARY  OfF pMs
Ye e THWARY. T STRTEY | o Fuwf 2000 pisd M LEMENTRTSS
et lefeef WAHRYS ESTREMMHEDY TeE TAK £ TRE RSS2 Faivipn

PRew EVEL WAL Se e wWD RK Famcs BEen Um0 TAMOn o ey,

G MGt CTHE  CesloRE ©F THE Sekfl -

FROLAESY  ow B ey

ORI

R

(e @pt SERNICE BT Skl HAS Geet DELAYED  fewpind
THE ceTesmE ©f T RE teafens SLAM CeRuTRTIs TS
Clevés  Baime QLEARLY  THIS bvad PART ©f THE Lo rseain
Te CTAWE 1T es T 1y TR i I AWM mceebinl THE
RLELEN DT EVIDERCL |, 1 YAl Bl TTHE WeReS | yWouin bt
PG T MpRE — oWk Sipm R CTHE OV o Barand

L ERRER ;00 HRNE AR UTER T S0 %3 VW MR E PND
AWE PR Bf TRE (LT g0t TRE CRIES BYEceTIvE of
BeMS. wWE ARE ASWnel tHAT  Nove it SHowwD CHAmGE LwT
THERE 16 A fRefif, Cowsathvjen | i F “THE lcoNVERAEnT

Y L_,Lc\v\i" S THIS T G THilso e ; WE THELL BE SR NG o
THE  WWhelke i THE CouwyTeY / Do We T WUASTE Yoo Titack

e U o S A e R g A

Yc..-;.»;;\ s N IRy

4»{ LA W R

oy M G S afy

SN g e . A o
LRV E A S e e



Tom White
28 Thompson Road
SE22 9JR

Susanna White

Chief Executive

NHS Southwark

160 Tooley Street

SE1 2TZ

Tel: 020 7525 0400
Susanna.white@southwarkpct.nhs.uk

March 16 2010

Dear Ms White, .. . . .. . . L o ,
Restructuring Drug and Alcohol Treatment Services in Southwark

| am writing to formally comptain about the process adopted by the PCT in

relation to your plans to introduce a significant variation in services for

u:gers of drug and alcohol services in Southwark.

At a meeting of Southwark Health Scrutiny Panel in Uecembe 3,
smembers of the OSC made it clear to the PCT and SLAM representative that
@she curtailment of self-referral and other drug and alcohol services at
iMarina House was a matter of great concern to the 05C. Tessa Jowell has
also written to you and the Secretary of State for Health expressing her

cansiderable roncern that services woold he curtailed.

As 1 am sure you know, those who self-refer are more likely to be vulnerable
and many have chaotic lives. The capacity for effective self-referral and
access to services is of great importance in reducing harm to this client
group and those who care for them.

Although self-referral was part of the consultation, which began on
November 162 2009, when the consultation finished on January 15% 2010,
the PCT announced to the local press that self-referral had not been
consulted on.

We are concerned about the following issues:

e The consultation only lasted for two months giving insufficient time
for the community to get fully involved. As you know Cabinet Office
guidance is that consultation should last for at least three months.

« There has not been a full needs assessment amongst service users to
determine how their needs would best be met in a reconfigured
service.



Prve b 29

¢ Primary care services generally do not have the capacity or expertise
to take on the service currently provided at Marina House.

e The Blackfriars service is too far from South Southwark and users are
much less likely to travel to Blackfriars than Marina House. This will
result in many users falling away from the service.

After the 2008 consultation finished the PCT reported to the PCT Board that
MPs, councitlors and users and other voluntary sector organisations did not
support the termination of self-referral and other services at Marina House.

In reality, there has never been an appropriate and adequate consultation
process relation to self-referral and other drug and alcohol services at

Marina House.

We believe that you have failed to carry out involvement and consuttation
as required by the legislation. We thought we were being consulted, but
now believe we have been robbed of the consultation process and that you
are trying to rob users of the services they need at Marina House.

As you know the duties of the PCT to involve the public and to undertake
public consultation is very clearly laid out in Section 242 of the NHS Act
2006 as amended in Section 233 “Duty to involve users of health services” of
the Local Government and Public Invotvement in Health Act 2007. This
requires you to make arrangements to ensure that users of services are fully
involved in the planning of the provision of services, the development and
consideration of proposals for changes in the way services are provided, and
decisions to be made affecting the operation of services; if any proposed
changed would have an impact on—

¢ the manner in which the services are delivered to users of services,

or
e the range of health services available to users.

The PCT has clearly failed to comply with your duties in this respect.

Furthermore, the obligation of the PCT to involve the pubtic is reinforced in
World Class Commissioning competency 3, which states that the PCT must:
“Fngage with public and patient: Proactively seek and build continuous and
meaningful engagement with public and patients to shape services and

improve health”.

In view of the serious breaches of your duties under these Acts of
parliament and WCC 3, | would be grateful if you would immediately
withdraw all and any plans that you have for the closure or the termination
of drug and alcohol service at Marina House. Furthermore, we request that
in consultation with patients, carers, the local voluntary and community
sector and clinicians, that you establish the means by which you will involve
patient and the public in any plans to vary or close services at Marina House,



fpee 7 30
pLe

provided for patients who live in or benefit from services commissioned by
Southwark PCT.

| also wish to remind you that your actions undermine the PCTs duty to
ensure that patient safety is your highest priority. As you know NPSA Step 2
requires you to establish a clear and strong focus on patient safety
throughout your organisation and Step 5 requires you to involve and
communicate with patients and the public - this includes “listening to
patients.” which you have clearly made little serious attempt to do.

I look forward to receiving your assurance that the PCT Board at its meeting
on March 25 2010, will abandon its ptans to close or vary self-referral and
other drug and alcohol services at Marina House, and follow the procedures
outlined above to secure fully, patient and pubtic involvement and
consuttation in any future proposals for the service.

Yours sincerely
Tom White
Southwark Pensioners Action Group

Copies to:
¢ Tony Lawlor, Substance Misuse Commissioner, Southwark Drug and Alcohol Action

Partnership (NHS Southwark)
« Donna Kinnair, Director of Commissioning
e Tessa Jowell, MP



14 January 2010 HOUSE OF COMMONS OV

Prse § 31

THE RT. HON. TESSA JOWELL M.P.
Member gf Parliament for Dulwich & West Nocwood

"
r Ref: 01100101

LONDON SW1A OAA

Tel: (020) 7219 3409 Fax: (020} 7219 2702
Email: jowellt@partiamentuk  Website: www.tessajowell.net

Rt. Hon. Andy Bumham MP
Secretary of State

Dept. of Health

Richmond Houss

79 Whitehall

London SW1A2NS

Dear Andy,
The Restructuring of Drug and Alcoho! Services in Southwark

NHS Southwark is nearing the end of a consultation on the restructuring of drug and alcotiol
services. | enclose a copy of its consultation document and background information for your
ease of reference. There is an issue that has arisen from this consultation process that | hope
you will consider and which is detailed in the penultimate paragraph of this letter

The restructuring of drug and alcohol services is set against the context of a changed nationa!
funding formula which has reduced funding by 4%. By way of a response to this, NHS
Southwark is proposing:
"~ Reorganising South London and Maudsley's (SLaM's) specialist services
— Establishing the integrated Offender Management Service (IOMS)
— Completing the roflout of the Primary Care Strateg.

This will mean that SLaM’s Community Drug and Alcohol Teams will be based in one site at
Blackfriars Road in the north of Southwark whilst the IOMS service will operate from Marina
House in Camberwell (close to King's College Hospital and the Maudsley Hospital).

My primary concem is one of access for my constituents in the south of Southwark to the
community teams which will be based at the opposite end of the borough. The proposed
compensation - the expansion of the use of community pharmacies and satellite clinics in GP
practices - is something that has been met with some resistance in the past among my
constituents. This is a factor that, | fee! should be taken into account as part of this process.

| am also concemned that the ease of self-referral will be curtailed. This is a user group which
includes vulnerable and often chaotic individuals: Any further obstacle in their path to seeking
treatment would simply reduce the likelihood of such treatment being sought. This would be
highly regrettable.

NHS Southwark has suggested, as part of its consultation, that a non-preferred option would
be to make no changes to SLaM services whilst finding the savings elsewhere. The
consultation document notes that “in effect, this is likely to be alcohol-related programmes™.

continued....



32
Poce 9

“The be , ity of drusg treatment is well established with every £1 spent
resulting in the community receiving £9.50 in benefits such as uncommitted crimes.

{ do not believe however, that we should look at the provision of drug and alcohol treatment as
an ‘either or’ argument as seems to be the case here. In the past decade, the death rate from
chronic liver disease, including cirthosis, has Asen by one third across the country but by
500% in Southwark. | cannot accept, given these stalistics, that there is any scope to reduce

the funding to alcohol related care.

| am aware that your Department intends to appoint a nationa! clinical director for liver disease
which demonstrates the high priority that you place on faking action in this field. fwould
request that you consider whether a direct and imaginative approach might be taken in the
interim which the new national clinical director could build upon. This would bring extra funding
to Southwark by building on local work and developing a centre for expertise and study that
could inform the work that is required in this extremely important area. There can be no doubt
that Southwark is an area of extreme need and this strategy makes logical sense given the
presence nearby of King's College Hospital which has one of the finest liver units in the
country, if not the world. I will, of course, support any local initiatives that might be taken to -
identify increased funding for these services, but | would be gratefu! if you might give
consideration fo the suggestion 1 have outlined above.

I look forward to hearing from you on this matter which 1 would, of course, be happy to discuss
with you in more detail,

OUT,

ﬁﬂ R Hon. Tesda Jowell 2P



Because of budget cuts, SLAM's (South London
and Maudsley) services have to be streamlined
and it had been decided recently to move Marina
House (except RIOTT, which will stay here) to
CDAT at Blackfriars Rd. The two clinics are to
be merged, but you will still get the services you
have been getting here at the same times as here
at the new location. The Primary Care Trust and
Marina House, together with Southwark User
Council, are holding 2 meetings to consult with
service users here about how these changes will
affect them and what can be done to help

H “*RE at Marma House

COME AND TALK TO US!
ASK QUESTIONS!
HAVE YOUR SAY!!




34
{roe W

e

Marina House/Blackfriars CDAT
Service Users Questionnaire

The Southwark User Council would like to take this opportunity to inform you of
changes in drug treatment in Marina House and CDAT.

Because of budget cuts, SLAM’s (South London & Maudsley) services have to be
streamlined and it has been decided recently to move Marina House (except RIOTT
which will stay at Marina House) to CDAT on Blackfriars Road.

The two clinics are to be merged, but you will still get the services you have been
getting here at the same times in the new location. It is possible that provisions such

as satellite clinics will be aiso be developed for people with particular difficulties, but
no decisions will be made on these until we are clear what those difficulties are likely

to be.

To that end, we would encourage you to complete the questionnaire below and
return it as soon as possible (there is a list of ways you can return it at the end of the
questionnaire). Please note this survey is anonymous: we do not require your

name or any other personal details.

1. Where do you currently receive your treatment?

Blackfriars CDAT Marina House

2. What issues are there for you when the two services merge into one?

3. What issues does this raise for you regarding the change in location?

4. How would you like to be kept up to date and informed about these changes?

5. How do you think these changes will affect your treatment?



35
Poce 2

How do you think these changes will impact on other areas of your life?

What could be done to lessen the impact of these changes?

Is this the first time you have heard gbou’z the changes? If so what have you
heard?

During this time, do you think you will need extra support?

10. If so, which support would be useful to you?

11. Do you have any further comments?

Please make sure you return this questionnaire by Friday, August 14™ 2009
You can do this in one of the following ways:

BY HAND. Drop it into the box in the reception areas of either Marina House
or Blackfriars CDAT.

BY FAX. Fax it to Colin Clews at Southwark PCT on 020 7981 8756.

BY EMAIL. If you have completed this on the internet, email it to Colin Clews
at colin.clews@nhs.net. (Please put ‘SLAM Survey' in the subject box).

BY POST. Post it to Colin Clews, Unit 208, Great Guildford Business Square,
30 Great Guildford Street, LONDON SE1 OHS.

Thank you for your time



pet 1236

77
" SOUTHWARK HEALTH

N SOCIAL CARE -

Consultation Activity

A formal consultation document was drawn up detailing the proposed new model. This was
distributed to local drug and alcohol services, general practices, Southwark LINK, the
Mental Health Partnership Board and the OSC. The proposal was also advertised on the
‘Get Involved” website and in the Southwark PPl newsletter,

A member of the Substance Misuse Commissioning Team also attended service user
meetings at various drug and alcohol services with representatives from the Service User

Council to discuss the proposal.

In June 2009 an Implementation Steering Group was established to take the project
forward. However, whilst some work has been undertaken on this, progress on a key
element — the closure of the self-referral service at SLAM — has been delayed pending the
outcome of the current SLAM consultation.

Costs

There have been no significant costs involved with this consultation other than officer time
and small room hire fees.




THE RE-STRUCTURING
OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL
TREATMENT SERVICES

~ IN SOUTHWARK

" CONSULTATION ON
CHANGES TO SERVICE
" PROVISION -

-Councll - ]

stk _;

__ Southwark




38
Pane 15
T

2 The Need to Re-structure SLAM Drug and
Alcohol Services

Funding for drug and alcohol treatment services has been affected by a number of
issues in recent times.

Since 2008/09 the national substance misuse budget has been allocated on a new
performance-based system. Key features of this system are:

Funding is linked directly to numbers in treatment.

Funding is also linked directly to the type of drug misuse being treated: twice as
much money is allocated for each user of crack cocaine and/or heroin in treatment as
it is for users of other drugs such as cannabis and powder cocaine.

Prior to 2008/09, the national treatment budget took into account other factors such
as local levels of deprivation and the differing costs of providing treatment in different
parts of the country. This is no longer the case.

Additionally, NHS Southwark, which allocates and oversees funding to all local health
services, is also subject to budget pressures and is seeking to make cost savings in
response.

These funding pressures mean that SLAM is seeking to provide the same level and
standards of service with a reduged ’budget

3 What Are Wedeg to Do?

The central feature of the re-structure is to move the majority of Marina House
services to the CDAT premises in Blackfriars Road. In practice this means ali of the
services listed in the table above with the sole exception of the RIOTT injecting clinic,
which will remain at Marina House. (RIOTT will remain where it is because it is
funded from different sources to ali the other services).

No services will be cut, nor will there be any reduction in opening hours.

4 The Consultation Process

What We Are Consulting On

We know that moving all of SLAM’s community-based drug and alcohol services to
CDAT will affect service users. However, we also know that different people will be
affected in different ways. Some people may feel that there is little difference; for
others the changes may raise all kinds of issues.

We need to know as much as possible about these issues so that we can look at the
best way of dealing with them.

What We Are NOT Consuiting On

We are not consulting on whether or not we should provide all SLAM drug and
alcohol services from one site instead of two.



39
{pLe b
..—-——""_‘/‘_‘

We are not consulting on whether or not CDAT should be the site from which we
provide SLAM drug and alcohol services.

How We Are Consulting

We have asked Southwark Substance Misuse Service User Council to help us
develop an effective consultation process. So far we have decided to run service
user meetings at both CDAT and Marina House and also to distribute a questionnaire
(which is also attached to the end of this document).

SLAM and Southwark NHS managers will attend the service user meetings, which
will be heid as follows:

CDAT

12 noon (after the coffee morning) on Thursday 30" July.

Marinz House

12 noon (after the coffee morning) on Tuesday 28" July and again at 6pm on
Tuesday 28" July.

Representatives of the Service User Council will aiso be involved in meetings
between SLAM and NHS Southwark to discuss the finer details of the new service at
CDAT. In order to best represent service users’ views it is essential that they have
the clearest possible picture on how the changes will affect people. They will be
available to talk to people at the above meetings and also the regular service user
meetings and coffee mornings at CDAT and Marina House.

5. Time Frame

We would appreciate a response from you as soon as possible. This will give us as
much time as possible to feed service users’ issues into the decision-making
process. The very last day that responses will be accepted is Friday, 14th

August 2009.



6.8  The Executive member added that the adult safeguarding board is very aware
of the problems caused by financial abuse, which is the biggest area of abuse
affecting vulnerable adults. He stated that any referrals are investigated, with
the view to prosecute where appropriate, and that this is a priority issue on the

adult safeguarding agenda.

Question 4.
Can the Executive Member for Health and Adult Care give an update on NHS

Southwark and SLaM's proposals to re-structure substance misuse services?

6.9 The chair informed members that the related information requested at the
previous meeting had not yet been received, and that the consuitation period
and dates had been agreed and that the consultation had already started,

without the sub-committee being notified.

6.10 The chief executive apologised that the consultation was not submitted to the
sub-committee before being published. She felt sure that the final document
addressed all of concerns that members had raised at the last meeting and
commented that her understanding was that the proposed 8 week period for the

consultation had not been an issue of contention.

6.11 A member commented that the concerns raised had centred on the clarity of the
wording used and the options, and that members still wanted a list of everyone

o be consulted.

6.12 The vice-chair observed that relevant officers and health professionals had
attended a recent Camberwell Community Council meeting, as thisis a
significant local issue for the area, and that there had similarly been assurances
that the points raised at the meeting would be addressed and that officers would
follow up with the Community Council on these and the plans for the
consultation. She commented that to date no one had reported back. She added
that her first impressions of the consultation document was that it was not very
user-friendly, [Copies were tabled that had been received that day.]

.. 6.13  Councillor Mitchell cited a document from July 2009 that had been given to

people who were accessing services at Marina House for substance mis-use.
He highlighted that it made evident that the decision regarding the re-location
had already been made, prior to any attempt to consult with local elected
representatives or with the sub-comimittee. The chief executive responded that
the document should not have not been produced or published in that way and
that it has been made clear to staff that proper consultation is requisite for

such issues.

6.14 The chair asked what outcomes from the consultation would be necessary to
make officers rethink the preferred option. The chief executive responded that
a different way of re-structuring the services would need to be proposed that

still delivered the savings.

615 A member asked that if 100% of the consultation feedback favoured option 2,
would officers implement their preferred opticn anyway? S White replied that
officers would be obliged to re-assess their preference in light of such a result,

6

Health and Adult Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Wednesday November 18 2009




6.16

@.17

put that no amount of discussion will be able to replenish the required funds.
Members therefore queried whether the alternatives listed were genuine
options. S White responded that options were requested, but it does not make

all options affordable.

A member remarked that he had heard that the number of staff at Marina
House had already been reduced. Paul Calaminus, SLaM, explained that
Marina House had provided services for residents of both Lambeth and
Southwark, but that all Lambeth users have since been invited fo access
services from a different location, which may have affected staff numbers.

Councillor Noakes commented that he sees this as a significant issue that
concerns him as the relevant Executive member and as a ward member for
the area. He emphasised that the fast outcome he would like to see would be
any changes that would reduce the number of people who could be treated.

Question 5.

6.18

Members asked what were the key outcomes of the debate. The Executive
member explained that the government is now at the phase between the green
and forthcoming white paper. He recounted that he had been keen for a local
care debate and that an event was therefore held at Kingswood House which
attracted a good range of residents and representatives from the voluntary
sector. He said it was interesting to note that most people were not happy that
the option of direct taxation had been ruied out, and that there was little favour
for the other options which revoived around voluntary contributions.

Question 6.

6.19

The chair queried how judgements were reached about people with the most
need and at the highest risk. Councillor Noakes explained that the council has
a statutory responsibility to provide for people with a particular level of need
and that the focus now is on those whose needs are critical and substantive.
He reiterated that much of the way that the budget is allocated is aiready
prescribed, and that the relatively few discretionary services are those more
susceptible to cuts when finances get tight.

Suppiementary guestion

6.20

Please give us an update as to what ié happening at the Dulwich Community
Hospital Site (Eastern End) setting out what is presently happening to the

buildings;

Aside from the GP services, what other functioning health services are being
provided in the Eastern Section of the Central Block, and what proportion of
the space there is being used for health purposes;

Do you intend to put any new building on the empty site at the Eastern end,
and are you presently negotiating with any builders for any new health service

7

Health and Adult Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee - Wednesday November 18 2008




42

| M et e T 7 Qe 16

2.11

P

Recent letters from Guy's and St Thomas’ and Kings College Hospital
regarding the scale of impending changes due to changing financial
circumstances are also strongly welcomed. Similarly, the short briefing from
Susanna White, NHS Southwark chief executive, at our 7 October 2009
meeting about imminent cuts and consequent changes was a useful signal of
the likely volume of forthcoming consultation issues.

Lessons to be learned / further good practice to establish

The sub-committee’s experience as a consultee that has prompted the most
concern relates to the consultation on the proposed re-structuring and
relocation of drug treatment and addiction services based at Marina House.

This issue first came to the attention of this sub-committee at its July 29 2009
meeting. One member had become aware by chance of a consultation
document posted at the Marina House premises, prior to any notification of
the proposed changes to the sub-committee or local elected representatives.
The paper was later identified by officers as a pre-consultation document,
designed to seek the views of current users. it took as its premise, however,
that Marina House would no longer be a location for addiction counselling and
the related treatments currently provided, and included the following
statement: "We are not consulting on whether or not we should provide all
SL.aM drug and alcohol services from one site instead of two."” It therefore
seemed evident that a decision had already been taken without appropriate

consultation.

The above citation also reflects an apparent officer misperception, that as the
re-structuring intends a change to the location of some services and not to the
actual services provided, it was not considered necessary to bring the issue
to the sub-committee. This is contrary, however, to the Department of Health
guidance on section 7 of the Health and Social Care Act 2001 (now section
244 of the NHS Act 2006), which outlines four key issues that should prompt
officers to confer with scrutiny members when deciding whether proposed
changes are substantial and what could comprise the appropriate scope of
consultation. The first of these issues is change to “service accessibility”,
which in this case would be affected by the relocation,

We therefore wrote formally to NHS Southwark, requesting, - at the earliest
opportunity - details of the scope and timeframe for the discussions with
service users: and the estimated timing for formal consultation with the sub-
committee, with the view to decide whether the changes would be deemed a
substantial variation, and to agree an appropriate consultation process.

Officers highlighted at the sub-committee’s subsequent 7 October 2009
meeting that the purpose of the related agenda item that evening was to seek
the sub-committee’s agreement on the proposed consultation, as had been
agreed by the PCT Board at their 24 September 2009 meeting.

Following the discussion, we agreed with officers that they undertake as
follows:



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

43
76

require assessment”, and that this option was not included in the consultation,
despite previous suggestions that it be added.

The sub-committee consequently recommended that “the needs of patients
with mental health issues be carefully considered in final design factors and
that no decision is taken until mental health service users groups are in
agreement with the proposed changes.” Members also made clear that they
would like “o be satisfied that the issues raised by such groups have been

fully addressed.”

At our 29 July 2009 meeting, current members of the sub-committee
requested an update on the proposed redesign of the ED, having heard that
the proposals affecting mental health patients were being altered. It was
reported that there had been considerable positive feedback on the overall
model of care, but that responses about the provision for mental health
patients (and for paediatric users) had generally been negative and that these
comments had impelled a revision of the action plan. KCH had decided, for
example, to expand the footprint of the new development into its Jubilee
Wing, giving greater flexibility on how to provide for mental health and

paediatric patients.

It was also explained that a mental health working group would be helping to
plan patient flows, and working with the architects and user groups to
effectively plan the ED redesign for mental health users.

At the our subsequent 7 October 2009 meeting, we were informed that the
redesign plans had been revised to include separate space for ambuiatory
and mental health patients; that the meet and greet area for all patients wotild
be the same, but that mental health patients would then be directed
immediately to a separate waiting area directly off the main atrium.

Members were also encouraged to hear that Southwark Mind had been
speaking very favourably to the press about the proposed changes for mental
health patients, and that the new plans had been unanimously well received.
We believe that this outcome merits attention as an example of a genuine

consultation.

While we recognise that health scrutiny committees have a statutory right to
require information and attendance from senior council officers and staff, we
would similarly like to highlight the consistent cooperation from all trust
partners to send relevant senior officers and board members to attend
scrutiny meetings in order to present proposed services changes and respond

to member questions.

In response to a letter on behalf of the sub-committee (17 August 2009},
requesting further information, NHS Southwark arranged an informal meeting
with several senior staff members from SLaM and the PCT regarding the
restructuring of community drug and alcohol services. This was a useful
means for conveying a professional understanding of the proposed changes
and provided an opportunity to discuss what additional information coutd
assist members in our consideration of the key clinical, financial and social

jssues.

We have also found considerable benefit from the opportunities to make site
visits to affected trust premises, and have appreciated the willingness of LINk
members to attend.



2.20

— 2.21

44

8 PaLE 9
hbe 1

i. to clarify the wording used in the proposals, and clarify the
consultation options,

it. to outline the proposed length of the consultation period;

iii. to provide a list of the groups and individuals with whom the PCT will
consult, and a list of the groups that are likely to be impacted by the
changes;

iv. to address the concerns raised in the September 24 2009 letter from
Councillor Noakes to the PCT Board.

Despite further contact, we first received a copy of the revised consultation
document at the sub-committee’s next meeting (18 November 2009) which
was also when we first learned from officers that this had been published and
that the consultation period had been finalised and had in fact started.

We therefore emphasised that we should be made aware of proposed
changes as early as possible: This would be in keeping with Department of
Health guidance, - but more significantly, the sooner members are informed
about problems that are likely to trigger changes and about proposals
themselves, the more likely we will be inclined to respond as constructively as

possible rather than critically.

To be promptly and properly informed would also help us to effectively
respond to related issues of difficulty with service users, and to feed back to

the trusts evidence of any issues of sensitivity.

Given the prospect of immense changes necessary by each of our local NHS
partners, we would likewise request that the sub-committee is made aware of
any changes being considered as early as possible to give us time to
consider the extent to which we wish and are able to become involved. This
will allow members to assess where we can best add value to such decisions
and agree on suitable criteria that the sub-committee can use for selecting
those issues which they can most effectively influence.

Basic data

2.22

In order to effectively respond to service user and related constituent issues,
there is a span of core information that would help us to more swiftly
understand and assess the likely impact of the proposed changes. At times
this has either been absent or unclear in consultation documents and related
briefing papers. We would therefore request that basic information, such as
the following, be consistently included and clear:

- An outline of who and how people are expected to be affected, including
a list of the likely most affected wards or areas in the borough; the
predicted number of residents / service users affected; and whether
particular communities or age groups etc will be impacted more than
others;

- An outline of any specific research/ surveys undertaken or commissioned
by the trust that underpin or have significantly influenced the consultation
options: including any that have been critical of the proposals or
equivalent proposals elsewhere;



- '
g

45
79

- An explanation of whether the changes result from policy or financial
imperatives etc;

- An equalities impact assessment.

Consuliation content and genuine options

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.27

At its 24 June 2009 meeting, the sub-committee was briefed on the report that
synthesised and analysed the consultation feedback on the Transforming
Southwark’'s NHS strategy, regarding a five to ten year strategy about the
shape and consteliation of local health services. We also used this as an
opportunity to discuss aspects of the consultation methodology.

While members realised that the objective of the consultation had been to
obtain feedback on the proposals at & broad strategic level, we believe that
the consultation survey was overly simplistic, to the effect that this
undermined the consultation’s validity:

Many of the survey questions were very general and devoid of context, to the
extent that they seemed designed to elicit responses that could only favour

the proposals;

The survey failed to substantiate why respondents supported or doubted the
merit of the proposals: For instance, where as many as 30% of respondents
stated that they did not know whether the proposals would improve local
healthcare, and approximately 8% believed that improvements would not be
achieved, no further questions were asked to establish the reasons behind

such reservations;

As the consultation presented new plans about where and how to allocate
resources, the survey should have made clear what alternatives exist, and
particularly what services may be reduced or relocated.

As stated in the consultation report, respondents were not asked about their
preferences for intermediate care, and this issue was deliberately omitted
from the proposals and survey: “Intermediate care is due to be further
reviewed and thus has not formed a major part of this consultation.” (p. 63) In
effect, the issue of intermediate care was left in a vacuum and respondents
were left insufficiently informed about the broader outcomes of the proposals,
and the implications for a key element of healthcare. We expect that the
respondents could have answered in a significantly different way, had the
relevant proposals for intermediate care been incorporated.

Regarding the content of the consultation document on the re-structuring and
relocation of drug treatment and addiction services, we sought assurance
from officers at our 7 October 2008 meeting that the document would reflect
the needs of the local communities and not lead respondents to a preferred

answer.

We queried again in November what outcornes from the consultation would
be necessary to make officers rethink the preferred option, and were told that
a different way of re-structuring the services would need to be proposed that
stilt delivered the savings. While we acknowledge that the changes are
impelled by the need to achieve savings to the value of £340,000 from SkLal,



*:_"-\J:-;_..

- 2,28

2.29

2.30

2.31

46

pee 2o 80

and to redirect appropriate elements of the services back into primary care,
we were concerned to learn that only one of the options outlined in the
consultation document was actually viable and could potentially achieve these

oufcomes.

We think it should be basic that consultation documents are clear about a
trust's proposed changes and equally clear about what viable alternatives or
variations on the changes have been identified that could achieve similar
outcomes. The range of feasible options should also be outlined as
objectively as possible, without leading respondents to a preferred answer.

Moreover, alternative proposals should not be presented as options, where a
trust does not in fact believe such an option to be practicable ~ unless this is
transparent in the consultation document and respondents are invited, for
example, to identify how such alternatives could be made viable.

As referred to above, we are grateful to have been informed early of the scale
of savings that our NHS pariners are compelled to achieve over the next
financial year and onwards. Particularly in such cases, where the spectrum of
services to be affected is so broad, we would like to receive details of where
savings achieved beyond the requisite budget percentage will be re-directed.
For example, where savings in one service area are achieved above the
obligatory 10% at Guy's and St Thomas’, - for instance to the value of 25% -
how would the 15% ‘surplus savings’ in this case be re-directed?

We would similarly be grateful for an outline of the feasible trade-offs that
would affect the consultation proposals, such as options to extend patient
waiting times for certain treatments rather than relocate services.

Consultation feedback

2.32

. 2,33

2.34

While we have particularly welcomed the revisions to the King's hospital ED
re-design that resulted from the consultation, members of the sub-commitiee
first heard of these improvements for mental health patients via the local
media, and subsequently sought further details from officers.

At our 20 January 2010 meeting, we agreed with officers that, at the
Southwark PCT board meeting the following day, the sub-committee’s
request be relayed that the decision regarding the re-structuring of drug and
alcohol services be delayed for a few days, to give the Health Secretary, Rt.
Hon. Andy Burnham MP, the opportunity to respond to the related letter of
January 14 2010 from the Rt. Hon. Tessa Jowell MP. To date we have not
been informed whether the board agreed to this request and/for of the board’s
final decision regarding the re-structuring.

We recognise that the King’s ED plans were subject to the assessment and
input of streamed steering groups, as well as project and trust hoard approval
before their finalisation, and that such processes can duly prolong the usual
decision period. We believe it would be an appropriate courtesy, however,
that we receive written notification of trust decisions on consuitation issues for
which we have submitted a written response, within a few days of the
decision having been made. These should also include replies to the sub-
committee’s key recommendations, in particular where these are refused.



47
81

Recommendations:

1. That the sub-committee be informed of proposed changes to health
services by the local NHS trusts as early as possible, in order to have a
reasonable opportunity to contribute to plans for consuitation and to be
able to respond effectively to constituent queries.

2. That consultation documents or related briefing papers to the sub-
committee include the following information:

- An outiine of who and how are people expected to be affected by the
proposed changes, including a list of the likely most affected wards
or areas in the borough; the predicted number of residents / service
users affected; and whether particular communities or age groups
etc will be impacted more than others;

- An outline of any specific research/ surveys undertaken or
commissioned by the trust that underpin or have significantly
influenced the consultation options; including any that have been
critical of the proposals or equivalent proposals elsewhere;

- An explanation of whether the changes result from policy or financial
imperatives etc;

- An equalities impact assessment.

3. That consuitation documents are clear about a trust's proposed changes
and equally clear about what viable alternatives or variations on the
changes have been identified that could achieve similar outcomes.

4. That the range of feasible options be outlined as objectively as possible,
without leading respondents to a preferred answer.

5. That consuitation documents do not include options for the proposed
changes, where a trust does not believe the option(s) to be practicable.

6. That the sub-committee be invited to help shape service change options,
where these are not impelled purely by clinical considerations, and in
particular where they involve trade-offs with other services, or service

levels, etc.

7. That the NHS trusts are more pro-active about informing community
councils of proposed changes that would affect their local communities,

and ensuring that the issues are aired in public.

8. That the NHS trusts inform the sub-committee of consultation outcomes
and provide feedback on the sub-committee’s response
recommendations, where this is reasonable, and particularly where these

are refused.

Health and Adult Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee

Councillor Lorraine Zuleta (Chair) Councillor Lorraine Lauder
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice-chair) Councillor Jonathan Mitchell
Councillor Aubyn Graham Councillor Caroline Pidgeon

Councillor Michelle Holford



SOUTHWARK HEALTH ‘ el

SHAPING THE FUTURE OF
MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES IN
HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE

Briefing paper on our
commissioning intentions
for 2010 onwards and the
likely impact on community
mental health services for
people of working age

Southwark




49

Shaping the future of mental health services Page 2 of 11

Health and health care in Southwark have improved greatly in
the last ten years — a period of record growth. Southwark
people are living longer and enjoying a range of health care
services. If we are to maintain and extend this, in a very
different financial era, we will need a changed approach to how
we will behave, and how services are delivered.

* % % %

With regard to mental health, our commissioning objective is to
increase access to high quality mental health services, with a
focus on early identification, admission prevention and an
ethos of supporting recovery from serious mental illness.
Psychological therapies and community mental health services
will be delivered in future as part of the care offered in GP Led
Health Centres.

NHS Southwark Strategic Plan 2010/11 - 2014/15

The new coalition government is putting general practice at the
heart of health commissioning. The flagship policy of GP-led
commissioning will transfer real budgets to groups of practices
and create larger GP-led clinical collectives with more direct
accountability for ensuring that high-quality and cost-effective
care is delivered to local communities. This means that in future
practice based commissioners will lead the work on clinically-led
commissioning and deciding clinical outcomes.

NHS White Paper, Equity and Excellence: Liberating the
NHS 2010

SWS MHS August 2010 2



50

Shaping the future of mental health services Page 3 of 11

Southwark PCT has reviewed its Mental Health services in the light of changes in need and in
order to establish services that increasingly delivered in the community; focussed on recovery and
delivered in accordance with the personalisation agenda. The impact of the recession has affected
Southwark services and the new financial context forms a core part of our future planning.

Southwark PCT’s five-year Strategic Plan sets out the financial framework for purchasing and
delivering healthcare services. In order to meet the growing and changing need for services
certain changes are necessary to ensure this can be delivered within a budget that is unlikely to
increase over the next four years. Southwark PCT spent £493m on healthcare in 2009/10. On the
current configuration of our services, expenditure is forecast to increase to £653m by 2013/14. Our
anticipated income in this period — in line with government forecasts — is £558m, a shortfall of
£95m. Health will need to prioritise spend and redesign services in order to meet the challenge of
gaps in funding.

The Council is facing significant budget pressures and are planning reductions of at least 25% over
the next few years in the light of actions by the new government in its steps to cut the national
budget deficit.

We are determined to provide effective mental health treatment to all those who need it, delivered
in a way that meets or exceeds national standards and guidelines. We are working closely with our
main provider the South London & Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust (SLaM) to agree how this can
best be achieved.

We recognise that any form of service change generates concern amongst service users and
within the wider community. For this reason we are committed to addressing concerns through
open and meaningful engagement with all those affected. We intend to engage service users and
other stakeholders in helping us make these changes and will ensure that this engagement
remains ongoing as services develop and evolve.

Donna Kinnair DBE
Director of Commissioning and Nursing
Southwark Health and Social Care

August 2010

SWS MHS August 2010 3



51

Shaping the future of mental health services Page 4 of 11

1.  Summary

1.1 Overview

This document sets out the rationale for changes to Southwark’s mental health services by:

a. Describing the changing demands upon mental health services
b. Outlines our response to new policy and financial drivers
C. Provides an overview of our plans to disinvest money from mental health services and

consequently change the way we deliver treatment and care
In instigating these changes we want to:

a. Encourage people with mental ill health and those who care and support them:
i. To be more actively involved in planning their treatment, care and support
ii. To take advantage of increased personalised services
iii. To have care that is focussed around the recovery model
iv. To take up personal health/social care budgets where appropriate

b. Increase the treatment, care and support options within the community, particularly within
primary care where more care will be delivered in the future

C. Cease our reliance on out-of-borough placements by placing people within Southwark

1.2 Policy Context

The publication of the previous Government’s mental health strategy, New Horizons’; the emerging
personalisation agenda (as set out in Putting People First®) - and the recovery model® in mental
health together set out a plan that patients should have access to a range of evidenced-based
talking therapies and pharmacotherapy treatments and should be supported, wherever possible, to
self-help and understand the issues around their health. The New Horizons strategic approach is
however under review and the Coalition Government are due to publish a revised strategy in
autumn 2010.

The new government published its reforming White Paper on 12" June 2010. lts three Key
Principles are: 1) patients at the centre of the NHS; 2) changing the emphasis of measurement to
clinical outcomes; and 3) empowering health professionals, in particular GPs as commissioners of
services.

The NHS Southwark Strategic Plan 2010/11 — 2014/15 Professor Darzi’s review Healthcare for
London: A Framework for Action* set out our plans for commissioning local mental health services.
Our aims are to increase access to high quality mental health services with a focus on early
identification, admission prevention and to create an ethos of supporting recovery from serious
mental illness. This Strategic Plan will be reviewed by GP Commissioners to ensure it has their
support as the new commissioners of care in Southwark.

" New Horizons: A shared vision for mental health, Department of Health, February 2010,
www.newhorizons.dh.gov.uk/assets/2010-02-04-299060 NewHorizons_acc2.pdf

2 putting people first: a shared vision and commitment to the transformation of adult social care, Department of Health,
December 2007, http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/SocialCare/Socialcarereform/Personalisation/index.htm

3 The journey to recovery: the Government's vision for mental health care, Department of Health, November 2001,
www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/@dh/@en/documents/digitalasset/dh_4058900.pdf

4 Healthcare for London: A framework for Action, NHS London, July 2007,
www.healthcareforlondon.nhs.uk/assets/Publications/A-Framework-for-Action/aFrameworkForAction.pdf

SWS MHS August 2010 4



52

Shaping the future of mental health services Page 5 of 11

The local context for the delivery of sustainable mental health services in Southwark is governed
by the Transforming Southwark programme and the Southwark Mental Health Strategy. NHS
Southwark has also operationalised a new contract with SLaM which established a robust
performance framework with incentives and penalties built in.

At the heart of Southwark’s Mental Health Strategy and the driver for improvement in quality and
choice of service delivery is the concept of personalisation. Our view is that personalisation helps
to challenge some of the ways in which mental health is perceived since it supports a user-centred
concept of ‘recovery’ in which recovery is a personal journey of learning to live well, despite the
continuing or long-term presence of mental health support needs. Personalisation includes
prevention, early intervention, and self-directed support which places service users in control of
arranging and managing their own support services.

The Southwark’s Mental Health Partnership Board is the multi-agency stakeholder group tasked
with leading the development and implementation of the local mental health strategy. In December
2009 the Partnership Board hosted a stakeholder event to identify the key strategic objectives that
would underpin the revised Southwark’s Mental Health Strategy. They recommended local mental
health service should:

Promote mental wellbeing

Are established within clear pathways of care

Are in the community and co located with other community provision

Develop self-directed support

Provide accessible services that respond to need

Develop alternatives to medication

Promote innovation and flexibility in service provision.

Make provision for Children and Adolescents with poor mental health that is specific to their
needs and yet benefiting from being a part of a wider service

Make provision for Older Adults with poor mental health that is specific to their needs and yet
benefiting from being a part of a wider service

S@mp oo T

1.3 Financial Drivers

The Coalition Government’s national deficit reduction strategy will see social care expenditure
reductions of the next few years greatly supersede those of the recent past with reductions of at
least 25% expected.

Health will come under increasing pressure to response to gaps in funding, including the impact of

reductions in local government funding which will require a review of resources to meet the needs
of the most vulnerable.

SWS MHS August 2010 5



53

Shaping the future of mental health services Page 6 of 11

2. Commissioning Intentions

2.1 Overview

During the autumn of 2009 SLaM undertook a review of the mental health services it provides to
people of working age. This review was undertaken with stakeholder involvement and was widely
consulted on. This review identified a number of service areas that could be revised in a way that
would aid recovery as well as further embed the concept of personalisation in local mental health
practice.

Following on from this review Southwark Health and Social Care intends to commission a revised
model of treatment, care and support for people with mental ill health that shifts care towards a
primary care focus where possible. This means that the future model of care will see more
treatment provided as episodes of care that are supported by patients’ GPs and other primary care
services. This will support a move away from providing ongoing, infinite support to some
individuals. The duration of time people stay in both ‘community’ and ‘inpatient’ treatment will also
be reduced.

The majority of expenditure on mental health services by NHS Southwark is at the South London
and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust (SLaM). In order to create a more diverse range of provision
and an environment where recovery and personalisation can be more easily facilitated, NHS
Southwark intends to disinvest monies from SLaM over the next two years. The future financial
landscape in the NHS means that we need to move ahead quickly with service redesign to deliver
this agenda. The financial climate also means that the Local Authority will be looking for savings of
between 25% and 40% over the next three years.

We have advised SLaM of our commissioning intentions and requested that they restructure their

services such that:

¢ Clinical evidence and national best-practice are adopted to develop and implement revised
clinical care pathways

¢ The philosophy of evidenced-based outcomes is embedded into the local treatment system
The time that people stay within both community and inpatient treatment is reduced

e Treatment is provided as episodes of care in a way that supports GPs and other primary care
services and that there is a move away from providing ongoing, open ended support

¢ Individuals are encouraged take a more active role in managing their own care

2.2 Equality Impact Assessment

In accordance with the Equalities Act (2010) we will ensure all the equality characteristics
contained within the legislation are impact-assessed to meet the needs of this population group.
The primary aim of the Equality Impact Assessment is to determine whether and how service
change will impact on specific groups or individuals. In particular the EIA focuses on of the
proportionality of the impact of change on people across categories of race, gender, disability, age,
sexual orientation, transgender and transsexual people, religion and belief. Consideration will also
be given to migrant workers, ex-offenders and the human rights agenda.

We will continue to seek the views of as many people as possible in order to qualify any decision
which is made following completion of the Equality Impact Assessment.

SWS MHS August 2010 6



54

Shaping the future of mental health services Page 7 of 11

3. Impact of Proposed Commissioning Intentions

The following SLaM services will be affected by the current proposed changes:

Support and Recovery Services
Assessment and Brief Treatment Services
Assertive Outreach Services
Psychological Therapies

Social Inclusion Services

®coo oo

Some SLaM services are not currently affected by the proposed changes but could be in the
future, these are:

Inpatient Services

Crisis Services

High Support Services
Early Intervention Services
Staying Well Services

®Poo oo

3.1 Redesign of Community Mental Health Teams

Background:

SLaM currently provides care for approximately 1,600 patients under a Care Programme Approach
(CPA). This means that patients are allocated a care-coordinator to support the patient in
management and recovery using a care plan and review meetings. There are a further 1,500
patients for which CMHTs provide case management and planning without a formal care
coordinator. There are a number of patients on both CPA and non-CPA care plans that no longer
require these services, but who have yet to be discharged.

Service Change will Result In:

1. The continued referral of people with non-complex mental health needs into primary care
service. This means that the CMHT teams will discharge some patients back to primary care for
management following the relevant episode of care. GPs will have and need access to support and
training to enable them to safely discuss and hold those clients with less complex needs who were
previously held within the CMHT teams. SLAM is intending to reduce their community caseloads
by 500 — 800 over the next two years addressing this area of change.

2. The establishment of an Assessment and Liaison service which will provide support to GPs
in their care of their patients with mental MH problems. This service will be delivered either at GP
surgeries or from within the developing GP Localities. This new service will be organised into two
teams (north and south). It will be set up by shifting resources from the present Community Mental
Health Teams.

3. Those with the highest level and complexity of need — i.e. those on a Care Programme
Approach (CPA) will continue to be supported by community mental health teams.

How the Redesign Would Work:

SLaM would retain the current 1,600 capacity for CPA services. For other patients, clinical teams
will deliver services with an enhanced focus on support and recovery, enabling more people to live
independently. The outcome of this will be reduced CMHT caseloads.

The redesign of care pathways for those in need of CPA and the provision of alternative treatment
and support of non-CPA patients in the context of primary care or the third sector will result in the
reduction in the number of clinical teams.

The reduction in clinical teams will mean that the current CMHT buildings configuration will need to
be rationalised across the borough.

SWS MHS August 2010 7



95

Shaping the future of mental health services Page 8 of 11

Issues that need to be Considered:

a. The Benefit system incentivises patients to remain on CPA

b. Appropriate preparation and support needs to be provided to enable patients to be
supported within the context of primary care

C. Disposal of the property needs to be followed by tangible reinvestment

d. Need to a good level of GP support and training during transition period

3.2 Reorganising Support and Recovery and Assertive Outreach

Background:

Under the National Service Framework (NSF) for Mental Health, the assertive outreach service
targeted the most difficult to engage people with psychosis. Services are delivered by teams
whose members have comparatively small caseloads. Data on Assertive Outreach has to be
reported under national monitoring arrangements to achieve nationally set targets.

Whilst assertive outreach services for psychosis are valued by users, there is little evidence to
demonstrate improved outcomes for patients. Evidence suggests that the assertive outreach model
in Southwark does not deliver beyond what could be provided (with some service development) by
the current early intervention teams and support and recovery teams.

Service Change will Result In:

1. A change in the way SLaM provide assertive outreach services by reorganising the
community mental health teams and the increasing role of Primary Care in managing more
patients who have been discharged from the Community Mental Health Teams. This means there
will be a reduction in the number of community mental health teams across Support and Recovery,
Assertive Outreach and Assessment and Brief Treatment.

How the Redesign Would Work:

The delivery of assertive outreach services will be integrated with support and recovery rather than
provided by a stand alone outreach team. The profile of the caseload for support and recovery will
be closely monitored following the change.

We will ensure that Government targets for Assertive Outreach are still met by the service.

Issues that need to be considered:

a. Performance against the assertive outreach targets will need to be carefully monitored.
b. The workload of the integrated team will need to be carefully monitored.

c. The impact of Primary Care will need to be continually assessed.

3.3 Reducing length of Stay in Hospital and Community Services

Background:
We want to create a culture of recovery and self-determination, rather than one of dependency.
The intention is to develop, in collaboration with GPs, an episodic model of care.

Service Change will Result In:

1. Changing the way we deliver treatment so that community services provide ‘episodes of
care’ to people with mental health problems rather than on-going ‘treatment’. We believe that, for
many, their mental health issues could be managed within a primary care setting in the context of
general health needs

2, Reviewing the way we deliver treatment in inpatient settings to optimise the length of stay

3. Patients will be increasingly managed out of hospital, specialist communities or out-patient
services where they do not require secondary care services.

SWS MHS August 2010 8



56

Shaping the future of mental health services Page 9 of 11

4. Service redesign will focus on developing closer working between primary and secondary
care, with greater outreach from primary care.

How the Redesign Would Work:

The Mental Health Advice and Liaison Service will be developed with consultants, and clinical
teams working with GPs to ensure that GPs have good access to advice and support in managing
patients in the community.

Issues that need to be considered:

a. The changes will need to take place in the context of Practice Based Commissioning and GP-
Led Heath Centre development

b. GPs will need to be fully engaged in developing pathways of care

3.4 Redesigning Psychological Therapy and Therapeutic Counselling
Services

Background:
Southwark has a long-standing counselling service based in GP surgeries and a newer
psychological therapy service. There are synergies and some overlap in these services.

Psychological Therapies and Therapeutic Counselling are funded in different ways. Psychological
Therapies are funded through the Governments flagship ‘Improving Access to Psychological
Therapies’ initiative. Therapeutic counselling, which often provides similar therapeutic intervention,
is funded from the budgets of GPs through ‘practice based commissioning’. The Therapeutic
Counselling service has developed differently in different locations with counsellors on varying
terms and conditions and providing a range of specialisms.

Southwark, with the assistance of the Guys and St Thomas’ Charitable Trust has commissioned a
review and redesign of the way in which these related services are provided locally. The findings of
this review are due in October 2010.

Service Change will Result In:
1. Review and redesigning these services to ensure maximum benefit to those with common
mental illness.

How the Redesign Would Work:

During the review there will be full consultation with service users, GPs and other related services.
Practice Based Commissioners will be fully engaged in shaping future psychological therapy and
therapeutic counselling services.

Issues that need to be considered:

a. Careful consideration will need to be given to the way in which an integrated service is funded,
staff employed and clinical supervision provided.

b. There will be increased delivery of therapies in primary care and managing the shift in capacity
to the GP Localities

c. There will need to be careful monitoring of performance to ensure that an integrated service
meets the Government’s targets for ‘Improving Access to Psychological Therapies’ for which
we receive funding

d. GP access for Psychological Therapy and Counselling for clients will need to be monitored to
ensure equitable spread across Southwark

SWS MHS August 2010 9



57

Shaping the future of mental health services Page 10 of 11

3.5 Managing the Changes in Mental Health Services

We have discussed our commissioning intentions with SLaM and together we are proposing to
jointly manage a two-year programme of change which will ensure we deliver services in line with
national, regional and local strategy, working within a recovery and personalisation framework. We
intend to maintain the quality of care and performance against national targets while meeting the
financial and strategic challenges of a reduced financial settlement and new developments in
Mental Health.

These proposed changes to services would allow Southwark Health and Social Care to disinvest a
minimum of £3.7m from SLaM over the next two years. Additional savings from both Southwark
PCT and Social Care will be required during 2011-14 in the region of 25% - 40%. In addition, there
may be future redesign and reductions in services of third sector and other providers of mental
health services.

The proposed approach will see fewer people retained on long-term Community Mental Health
Team (CMHT) caseload and more people being treated within primary care, in a treatment culture
where recovery and abstinence is more actively encouraged.

We intend to provide the best services we can and this will involve making decisions that keep
people with mental health problems at the centre of our policies. To do this:

We need the views of all stakeholders

We need imaginative solutions

We need to approach this difficult time with strong commissioning intentions

We need to ensure that mental health services are not marginalised in a time of economic
restraints

SWS MHS August 2010 10



58

Shaping the future of mental health services Page 11 of 11

4. Stakeholder Engagement

Our strategic plans and proposals for implementation have been set out in a range of documents
and we have engaged service users, carers and wider stakeholder in discussions about these in a
range of meetings and forums. Our local strategic direction matches that set out within national
mental health strategy and we have engaged stakeholders widely in developing the strategy.

Locally there has been considerable engagement with service users and stakeholders regarding
our plans for mental health services:

a. During the autumn of 2009, SLaM engaged widely on new ways of delivering adult mental
health services.

b. In December 2009, we organised a stakeholder event including service users, carers and
voluntary and community groups and agreed ten strategic objectives as the framework for
Southwark’s Mental Health Strategy

¢. During May 2010 discussions took place with key stakeholders at the MHPB about our
commissioning intentions and SLaM'’s response to these proposals. Key stakeholders include
voluntary sector representatives, carer and service user representatives who report back to
through their representative structure which is co-ordinated via Southwark Mind

d. In early August 2010, we organised a stakeholder event including users, carer and providers to
outline the current context, SLaM'’s proposals for the structure of services and to review the
strategic priorities from the December 2009 event.

As a consequence we do not intend to undertake further formal consultation on the proposals
contained in this paper. We will work closely with Southwark’s Health and Adult Social Care
Scrutiny Committee and work within the Secretary of State for Health’s recently announced
framework for strengthening health service reconfiguration. To satisfy these requirements we will:

a. Ensure we engage and discuss our plans within public and patient engagement systems and
with the local authority

b. Ensure our plans are supported by GP commissioners

c. Ensure that we publish the clinical evidence that underpins our plans

d. Ensure that our plans support patient choice.

NHS Southwark and SLaM plan to engage with users of services and other stakeholders to
discuss the impact of the proposed changes. The groups we intend to talk with include:

1. Service Users
e Service Users currently receiving services
e Southwark Mind and User Council
e Southwark Local Involvement Network (LINk)

2. Service Providers
¢ Non-statutory mental health services

3. Other stakeholders
e The Probation Service
e Metropolitan Police

Staff Consultation

SLaM will formally consult with their staff regarding personnel changes that will result from the
service redesign detailed in this document. NHS Southwark is planning an event in October 2010
for users and carers to further discuss the current context and planned changes to service,
feedback from previous discussions with service user groups and to review strategic objectives.

Outcomes from the engagement work as outlines above will be presented and discussed at the
Mental Health Partnership Board.

SWS MHS August 2010 11



99

South London m

and Maudsley

MHS Foundation Trust

South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust pre-consultation paper on
the restructuring of services to meet the requirements of NHS Southwark’s
mental health contract for 2010/12

Introduction

NHS Southwark has reviewed its Mental Health services in light of the changes in
need and in order to establish services that are closer to the community, more
focussed on recovery and more in line with the personalisation agenda.

NHS Southwark spent £493M on healthcare in 2009/10. The PCT Strategic Plan
forecasts that by 2013/14, with the current configuration of services, expenditure is
estimated to increase to £653m and the anticipated income in this period is £558m —
a shortfall of £95m.

Southwark Council is also facing significant budget pressures. Since 2007/08 the
money spent on adult social care has reduced in real terms by 10% reduction and a
further reduction of 25% is being modelled over the period 2011/12 and 2013/14 in
light of the new Emergency Budget.

NHS Southwark have informed South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust
(SLAM) that they intend to reduce the mental health contract by £3.7m over the next
two years 2010 to 2012 as part of their recovery plan. It is also expected that further
significant reductions to the SLAM contract will happen in 2012 to 2014. This
disinvestment is on top of the reduction in substance misuse services which is
addressed in a separate document.

NHS Southwark has also asked SLAM to address the New Horizons and Putting
People First personalisation agenda in parallel with the disinvestment. This will mean
looking at developing new ways of delivering mental health services that promote
well being, putting people at the centre of planning, moving responsibility for health
and well being back to individuals and preventing ill health where possible, but
treating, caring and supporting people when necessary.

NHS Southwark have advised SLaM of their commissioning intentions and requested
that they restructure their services such that:

¢ Clinical evidence and national best-practice is adopted to develop and
implement revised clinical care pathways

¢ The philosophy of evidenced based outcomes is embedded into the local
treatment system

e The time that people stay within both ‘community’ and inpatient treatment is
reduced

e Treatment is provided as episodes of care that support GPs and other
primary care services and that we move away from providing on-going, open
ended support to individuals

e Individuals are encouraged take a more active role in managing their own
care

NHS Southwark have asked that in the first instance we look at making the savings
through re-designing adult community services as it is recognised that there are less
opportunities to redesign crisis and acute services in the short term. The strategic
direction outlined in the PCT Strategic Plan is that people are discharged to
community services when they are well enough to be managed within primary care.

1



60

NHS Southwark also informed SLAM that they did not want to disinvest in the High
Support Services but wanted to extend this model of provision into Supporting
People accommodation. They were also clear that they wanted to continue with the
current level of investment in the early intervention in psychosis services.

It was agreed that £700k would be found within SLAM central budgets and that an
income target of £300k would be given to CAMHS and that the remaining £2.7m
would be found by restructuring and reducing Adult community services.

Principles underpinning the consultation

Consultation differs from negotiation in that it does not aim to reach an agreement,
which is satisfactory to all parties; rather it is a joint examination and discussion of
issues of concern to both senior management in SLAM, staff, service users and
carers. Ultimately, however, it is for senior management to make the decision it
thinks best in the light of all the information and views expressed as they are
accountable for the service; this may or may not be satisfactory in the opinion of
everyone else.

In 2009, before disinvestment, Southwark SLAM embarked on an extensive
consultation to get the views of service users, carers and other stakeholders on
whether there was support for the plan to reconfigure community mental health
teams into functional services, which in essence is developing assessment and
liaison teams as well as separate treatment teams for psychosis and mood disorders.

This new way of organising services was generally well received, especially as these
structures support the eventual move towards the national agenda of delivering
outcome measured episodes of care within clustered pathways and the introduction
of payment by results.

The level of disinvestment means that reducing activity and then top slicing the
current community team structure to pull out the funding would create services too
small to operate efficiently and effectively. However, reorganising services into fewer
teams that are functional and organised to deliver episodes of care would ensure that
people who are needing community mental health services are receiving them and
people who are well can remain in primary care with the new liaison services
ensuring easy access to secondary services when required.

Disinvestment in Services

SLAM has identified five main areas of redesign to address both the need to
reorganise and disinvest. These are:

In 2010/ 2011 to carry out

e The reintegration of the assertive outreach services into the support and
recovery teams

e The redesign of community services and introduction of Liaison and
Assessment teams to support the reduction in secondary care and increase in
primary care and third sector provision

¢ Introducing episodes of care and shortening lengths of stay in secondary care
by introducing the Staying Well team

In 2011 /2012 to carry out

¢ The reorganisation of psychological therapies in the borough
e The reduction in the community estate



61

2010/11

Based on recently published research by Helen Killaspy et al in the British Journal of
Psychiatry 2009 it can be seen that there is no real advantage gained by using the
assertive outreach community team model over support and recovery services and
as such the delivery of assertive outreach services will be integrated back into the
support and recovery teams. Support and recovery teams in turn will need to
reorganise how they manage caseloads within the team and develop a team
approach allowing an assertive delivery of care to those that need it.

NHS Southwark have also asked that the START homeless service concentrate on
the liaison role it has with the homeless sector and that they move engaged and
settled service users into mainstream support and recovery teams. They have also
asked SLAM to develop a Supporting People team to ensure we use the SP
provision in the borough as efficiently and effectively as possible.

In order to reduce activity in Support and Recovery teams in the borough SLAM wiill
need to change the way they work with their service users and develop a much more
fluid way of getting access to secondary mental health services when needed but
also being discharged out of services when well. For this to happen SLAM have
introduced the Staying Well team that supports people back to primary care with
individual plans on how to stay well and how to access secondary services when
needed. SLAM will also be reorganising their current Assessment and Brief
Treatment teams into liaison and assessment teams to work jointly with primary care
and other providers providing support and access into services when needed.

There is also a need to re-organise secondary psychological therapies in line with
CAG structures and service areas changing the way services are funded which will
release resources.

2011/2012

It is also necessary to review activity levels and funding streams for psychological
therapies in the borough. In the first instance primary care have been informed that
no more direct referrals can be made to SLAM psychological therapy services and
that they will all need to go via Southwark Psychological Therapy Services (SPTS) or
current Assessment and Brief Treatment services (ABT). As well as this NHS
Southwark will be reviewing primary psychology services in 2010 which will include
the SLAM SPTS contract and counselling in GP surgeries with the aim of reducing
the spend by £500k.

The current condition of the estate in certain areas of the borough is quite poor and
with the re-organisation of in services it is anticipated that one of the CMHTs bases
will be surplus to requirements.



62

Restructure Plans and Reduction in Community Teams
Currently there are 18 teams:

5 x Assessment and Brief Treatment teams
5 x Support and Recovery teams

1 x Staying Well team

2 x Early Intervention teams

2 x High Support Teams

2 x Homeless Assertive Outreach teams

1 x Assertive Outreach team

The following 13 teams will be restructured:

5 x Assessment and Brief Treatment teams
5 x Support and Recovery teams

2 x Homeless Assertive Outreach teams

1 x Assertive Outreach team

To create the following 8 teams:

2 x Liaison and Assessment teams

2 x Support and Recovery for Mood Disorder teams
4 x Support and Recovery for Psychosis teams

1 x Supporting People team

1 x Homeless team

So that in future there will be 15 teams:

2 x Liaison and Assessment teams

2 x Support and Recovery for Mood Disorder teams
4 x Support and Recovery for Psychosis teams

1 x Staying Well team

1 x Supporting People team

1 x Homeless team

2 x Early Intervention in Psychosis teams

2 x High Support Teams

This will reduce the number of community teams and reduce caseloads in the
following way:

Contracted activity for 2009/10 was 3,100 cases

Assessment and Brief Treatment 1,100
Support and Recovery and Staying Well (SW) 1,300
High Support Services 340
Early Intervention 180
SCOT and Start Team (AO) 180

Contracted activity with disinvestment for 2010/11 is 2,600

Liaison and Assessment 320
Support and Recovery in Mood Disorders 520
Support & Recovery in Psychosis and SW 1,100
High Support and Supporting People 360
Early Intervention 180
Homeless Team 120



63

Financial Restructure
The above plan will reduce spend in the following service areas:
¢ Reducing community caseloads by 500 will reduce the number of community
teams across Support and Recovery, Assertive Outreach and Assessment

and Brief Treatment releasing a saving of £1,750k fye

¢ Reduction in Community management posts proportional to the reduction in
community activity releases a saving of £200k fye

¢ Restructure of secondary care psychological therapy releases a saving of

£250k fye
Year One 2010/ 2011
Total AMH full year effect reduction £2,200,000
(Part year effect reduction from 1% October 2010) £1,120,000
Total non AMH full year effect reduction £1,000,000
(Part year effect reduction from 1% October 2010) £500,000
Total full year effect reduction in 2010 £1,160,000

Year Two 2011/ 2012

Full year effect reduction in AMH from year one plans £2,200,000
Full year effect reduction in non AMH from year one plans £1,000,000

Reduction in psychological therapies from 1% April 2011 £500,000

Total Reduction 2010 / 2012 £3,700,000



64

Current Community Structure and Commissioned Activity Levels 2010

No Team Type Location Actual Activity Contracted
2009 /10 Activity 2009/10
1 Lordship Lane Long term CPA care and 22 Lordship
Support and support team for all mental | Lane SE22
Recovery Team health conditions
2 St Giles 1 Long term CPA care and St Giles House
Support and support team for all mental | St Giles Road
Recovery Team health conditions SE5
3 St Giles 2 Long term CPA care and St Giles House
Support and support team for all mental | St Giles Road 1445 cases 1375 cases
Recovery Team health conditions SE5
4 North West Long term CPA care and 27 Camberwell 1139 on CPA
Support and support team for all mental | Road SE5 52.7 wte care co-or
Recovery Team health conditions
5 North East Long term CPA care and Ann Moss Way | average caseload
Support and support team for all mental | SE16 is 21.6 to 27.4
Recovery Team health conditions
6 Lordship Lane Access, assessment and 22 Lordship
Assessment and short term care for all Lane SE22
Brief Treatment mental health conditions
Team
7 St Giles 1 Access, assessment and St Giles House
Assessment and short term care for all St Giles Road
Brief Treatment mental health conditions SE5
Team
8 St Giles 2 Access, assessment and St Giles House
Assessment and short term care for all St Giles Road 1193 cases 1100 cases
Brief Treatment mental health conditions SE5
Team av caseload 40.6
9 North West Access, assessment and 27 Camberwell
Assessment and short term care for all Road SE5
Brief Treatment mental health conditions
Team
10 North East Access, assessment and Ann Moss Way
Assessment and short term care for all SE16
Brief Treatment mental health conditions
Team
11 SCOT Assertive CPA care for 88 Camberwell
Assertive Outreach | people who find it difficult Road SE5
Team to engage with services
12 SE START Engagement, assessment 88 Camberwell
Homeless Team and long term care for Road SE5 314 cases 180 cases
homeless people
13 SW START Engagement, assessment 88 Camberwell
Homeless Team and long term care for Road SE5
homeless people
14 Dual Diagnosis Providing training and joint | 27 Camberwell
Team work with community Road SE5 Joint working cases | Joint working cases
teams for people with drug
and /or alcohol issues
15 North STEP Early Comprehensive care for 12 Windsor Walk
Intervention for people under 35 with their SE5
Psychosis Team first experience of
psychosis
16 South STEP Comprehensive care for 12 Windsor Walk | 180 cases 200 cases
Early Intervention people under 35 with their SE5
Team first experience of
psychosis
17 High Support Care, support and 113 Denmark
Residential and proactive move on for Hill SE5
Nursing people in placements
Placements Team
18 High Support Care, support and 11 Denmark Hill | 374 cases 370 cases
Forensic proactive move on for SE5
Placements Team people in forensic
placements
Total No Clinical 3427 cases 3125 cases

Teams 18




65

Following Disinvestment Future Community Structure and Commissioned

Activity Levels 2010
Team Type Location Contracted
Activity 2010 /11
1 North Assessment Liaison and assessment service for primary 27 Camberwell
and Liaison Team care and other stakeholder providers Road SE5 and Ann
Moss Way SE16 320 cases
2 South Assessment | Liaison and assessment service for primary 22 Lordship Lane
and Liaison Team care and other stakeholder providers SE22
3 North Support and Care and support for people with anxiety, 27 Camberwell
Recovery for Mood | depression, trauma and personality disorders Road SE5 and Ann
Disorders Team Moss Way SE16
4 South Support and Care and support for people with anxiety, 22 Lordship Lane 520 cases
Recovery for Mood | depression, trauma and personality disorders SE22
Disorders Team
5 Staying Well Team Providing support to people to develop their St Giles House
own care plans to live independently in the St Giles Road
community SE5
6 St Giles 1 Support Care and support for people with psychosis St Giles House
and Recovery for St Giles Road
Psychosis Team SE5
7 St Giles 2 Support Care and support for people with psychosis St Giles House
and Recovery for St Giles Road 1100 cases
Psychosis Team SE5
8 St Giles 3 Support Care and support for people with psychosis St Giles House
and Recovery for St Giles Road
Psychosis Team SE5
9 North East Support | Care and support for people with psychosis Ann Moss Way
and Recovery for SE16
Psychosis Team
10 Supporting People Care, support and proactive move on for NRPF | 88 Camberwell
Team people and people in Supporting people Road SE5
accommodation
11 3 Borough START Engagement and assessment for homeless 88 Camberwell
Homeless Team people Road SE5 120 cases
12 High Support Care, support and proactive move on for 113 Denmark Hill
Residential and people in placements SE5
Nursing
Placements Team
13 High Support Care, support and proactive move on for 11 Denmark Hill 360 cases
Forensic people in forensic placements SE5
Placements Team
14 North STEP Early Comprehensive 2-3 year care programme for 12 Windsor Walk
Intervention for people under 35 with their first experience of SE5
Psychosis Team psychosis
15 South STEP Comprehensive 2-3 year care programme for 12 Windsor Walk 180 cases
Early Intervention people under 35 with their first experience of SE5
Team psychosis
Total no Clinical 2600 cases
Teams 15
Jk 26/7/10




% Agenda ltem 7

Southwark m

Primary Care Trust

Summary of the White Paper Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS

The White Paper sets out the Government’s vision for the future direction of
the NHS.

The key elements of the vision are that:

e The NHS will remain free at the point of use and based on clinical need
not the ability to pay

e The Government will increase spending in real terms in each year of the
current Parliament.

e Patient choice is at the heart of the NHS, with patients having increased
information about quality and outcomes and increased control over their
care records.

e The NHS will be held to account against evidenced-based outcome
measures not process targets.

e Any provider meeting national quality standards and accepting national
tariffs will be able to offer NHS funded services, and GP consortia will be
able to buy in support.

e Providers will be paid according to their performance, with payment
reflecting outcomes and quality goals not just activity.

e Power and responsibility for commissioning hospital and community health
services will be devolved to GPs working in consortia. GP consortia will
have a duty to work in partnership with local authorities. Primary medical
care will be commissioned centrally. PCTs will divest their provider
service functions by April 2011, in line with the existing policy direction.
PCTs will be abolished from April 2013.

e The Government will not be determining the geographical extent of the GP
consortia, that will be down to GPs themselves. However, certain
principles have been set out in the White Paper such as that GP consortia
must cover a contiguous geographical area and should be able to
commission services jointly with local authorities, as well as that they
should be of sufficient size to manage financial risk.

e A new NHS Commissioning Board will allocate resources to GP consortia
and be accountable for delivery of outcomes and the use of NHS
resources. The NHS Commissioning Board will have an explicit duty to
promote equality and tackle inequalities in access to healthcare. It will



67

hold GP consortia to account. Strategic Health Authorities (such as NHS
London) will be abolished during 2012/13.

e A further White Paper on public health will be published later in the year.
Health protection functions from various bodies will move into a new
national Public Health Service and PCT public health responsibilities will
transfer to local authorities, who will employ the Director of Public Health
(jointly appointed with the Public Health Service), with a ring-fenced
budget with funds allocated according to relative population health need,
from April 2012.

e The role of the Care Quality Commission as an effective quality
inspectorate will be strengthened across health and social care. CQC and
Monitor will jointly license health providers and CQC will inspect providers
against the essential levels of safety and quality.

e Local authorities will promote the joining up of local NHS services, social
care and health improvement. Through new statutory arrangements local
authorities will establish health and well-being boards or through existing
LSPs will promote integration across health and adult social care,
children’s services including safeguarding and the wider local authority
agenda. These functions would replace the current statutory functions of
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

e The Government will establish a commission on the funding of long-term
care and support, to report within a year. The commission will consider
options including a voluntary insurance scheme and a partnership
scheme. The Government will also reform and consolidate the law
underpinning adult social care. The overall vision will be brought into a
White Paper in 2011.

e The Government will seek to break down barriers between health and
social care funding to encourage preventative action.

e A strategy for social care reform (covering personalisation, prevention and
reablement) will be published in November 2010.

e The Health Bill will contain provisions to create HealthWatch England, a
new independent consumer champion. LINks will become the local
HealthWatch, to be funded by and accountable to local authorities, and will
promote choice (e.g. helping people choose which GP practice to register
with) and complaints advocacy. Local HealthWatch will have powers to
recommend that poor services are investigated.

Summary of Supplementary Consultation Documents

Following publication of the White Paper the Government has published five
consultation documents seeking comments on a series of questions relating



68

to the development of various aspects of policy. The five consultation
documents are:

Local democratic legitimacy in health

Commissioning for patients

Transparency in outcomes — a framework for the NHS
Regulating healthcare providers

Review of arms-length bodies

The following is a brief summary of each of the first four of these documents
(the review of arms-length bodies has less impact on local services, decision-
making and governance).

Local Democratic Legitimacy in Health

The document defines localism as one of the defining principles of
Government policy and proposes local democratic accountability by which
councillors and councils will have a new role in ensuring the NHS is
answerable to local communities. The aim is that patients who need the help
of both health and social care services can expect to get much more
coherent, effective support. In this new role councils will have greater
responsibility in four areas:

e assessing local needs by leading joint strategic needs assessments
(JSNA) to ensure coherent and coordinated commissioning strategies

e supporting local voice, and the exercise of patient choice

e promoting more joined up commissioning of local NHS services, social
care and health improvement

e leading on local health improvement and prevention activity.

The main specific proposals are that:

e Local Involvement Networks (LINks) will become the local HealthWatch,
which will be given additional functions and funding to provide a
signposting function to the range of organisations locally, an NHS
complaints advocacy service, supporting individuals to exercise choice
such as choosing a GP practice. Local authorities will fund HealthWatch
and contract for their services and hold them to account for discharging
these duties and ensuring the focus of local HealthWatch activities is
representative of the local community. Local HealthWatch will be part of
the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and will be able to report concerns
about local health or social care services directly to HealthWatch England,
within CQC.

e The Government prefers to specify a statutory role for local authorities to
support joint working on health and well-being. A statutory partnership
board — a health and well-being board — within the local authority would



69

provide a focal point through which joint working could happen. The four
main functions of health and well-being boards proposed are:
o To assess the needs of the local population and lead the JSNA
o To promote integration and partnership including through joined-up
commissioning across the NHS, social care and public health
o To support joint commissioning and pooled budget arrangements
where all parties agree
o To undertake a scrutiny role in relation to major service redesign

It is proposed that the statutory functions of the OSC would transfer to the
health and well-being board. Local authorities would need to ensure that a
process was in place to scrutinise the functioning of the health and well-being
board and health improvement policy decisions.

e When PCTs cease to exist responsibility and funding for local health
improvement activity will transfer to local authorities (e.g. in relation to
smoking, alcohol, diet and physical activity). A national Public Health
Service will integrate and streamline health improvement and health
protection functions. Local Directors of Public Health will be jointly
appointed by local authorities and the Public Health Service, with direct
accountability to both. They will have a ring-fenced health improvement
budget allocated by the Public Health Service.

Commissioning for Patients

Most commissioning decisions will now be made by consortia of GP practices,
held to account for the outcomes they achieve by the NHS Commissioning
Board. It will be a requirement that every GP practice to be part of a
consortium and to contribute to its goals. It is proposed that a proportion of
GP practice income is linked to the outcomes that practices achieve through
commissioning consortia and the effectiveness with which they manage NHS
resources. Consortia will be able to employ staff or buy-in support from
external organisations. Consortia will determine which aspects of
commissioning require collaboration across several consortia.

The NHS Commissioning Board will be responsible for commissioning primary
medical services, and also dentistry, community pharmacy, primary
ophthalmic services and national and regional specialised services and
maternity services.

The Secretary of State will set the NHS Commissioning Board an annual
mandate, based on a multi-year planning cycle, covering the totality of what
the Government expects from the Board. The Board will in term hold
consortia to account for their performance.

Consortia will have a duty to promote equalities and to work in partnership
with local authorities. Consortia will have a duty of public and patient
involvement.



70

The economic regulator and the NHS Commissioning Board will ensure
transparency and fairness in spending decisions and promote competition,
including by ensuring that wherever possible any willing provider has an equal
opportunity to provide services.

The NHS Commissioning Board will have a significant role in managing
financial risk, including through oversight of risk pooling within and between
consortia. The principles for managing overspends and underspends will be
agreed between the NHS Commissioning Board, the Department of Health
and HM Treasury.

The aim is that GP consortia will take on their new responsibilities as rapidly
as possible. The timetable is:

2010/11 GP consortia begin to come together in shadow form

2011/12 A comprehensive system of shadow consortia in place, and the
NHS Commissioning Board established in shadow form from
April 2011

2012/13 Formal establishment of GP consortia, together with indicative

allocations and responsibility to prepare commissioning plans,
and the NHS Commissioning Board established

2013/14 GP consortia to be fully operational with real budgets and
holding contracts with providers

Transparency in Outcomes — a Framework for the NHS

The Secretary of State will hold the NHS Commissioning Board to account
through the NHS Outcomes Framework, which is concerned with how the
performance of the NHS across the system will be judged at a national level.
It will be made up of a set of national outcome goals that will provide an
indication of the overall performance of the NHS.

The NHS Commissioning Board will in due course develop a commissioning
outcomes framework that measures the health outcomes and quality of care
achieved by GP consortia. It will develop a set of indicators to operationalise
the national outcome goals set by the Secretary of State.

There will be separate frameworks for the NHS, public health and for social
care. The NHS Outcomes Framework will therefore focus on the outcomes
that the NHS can deliver through the provision of treatment and healthcare.

The consultation on the national NHS Outcomes Framework asks for views
on:

e The principles that should underpin the framework




71

e A proposed structure and approach that could be used to develop the
framework

e How the proposed framework can support equality across all groups and
help reduce health inequalities

e How the proposed framework can support the necessary partnership
working between public health and social care services

e Potential outcome indicators, including methods for selection, that could
be presented in the framework.

The proposal is to structure the NHS Outcomes Framework around a set of
five outcome domains that attempt to capture what the NHS should be
delivering for patients:

Domain 1: preventing people from dying prematurely

Domain 2: enhancing quality of life for people with long-term conditions
Domain 3: helping people to recover from episodes of ill-health or following
injury

Domain 4: ensuring people have a positive experience of care

Domain 5: treating and caring for people in a safe environment

There are specific proposals for outcome indicators for each of the domains
and some very detailed issues on which comments are being sought.

Regulating healthcare providers

This consultation document seeks to accelerate progress towards all NHS
provision being provided by NHS Foundation Trusts (FTs), considers potential
additional freedoms for foundation trusts and proposes to establish an
independent economic regulator for health and social care.

The core purpose of Monitor will change to take on the role of economic
regulator, responsible for regulating prices, promoting competition and
supporting service continuity. Monitor will carry out a range of regulatory
functions currently delivered wholly or in part by the Department of Health.
Monitor’s principal duty will be to protect the interests of patients and the
public in relation to health and adult social care by promoting competition
where appropriate and through regulation where necessary.

It will not be an option for organisations to decide to remain as an NHS trust
rather than become or be part of a foundation trust.

The Government’s intention is that FTs will be regulated in the same way as
any other provider in the private or voluntary sector.

Foundation trusts freedoms will be extended:
e The cap on the proportion of earnings from private income will be repealed

e The Government is considering whether to retain Monitor's power to limit
the amount FTs can borrow from banks and other lenders



72

e FTs will be able to amend their own constitutions with the consent of their
boards of governors

e There will be greater freedom for FTs to acquire another organisation or to
de-merge (subject to merger controls to protect competition)

Monitor will be responsible for establishing funding arrangements to finance
the continued provision of services in the event of special administration (to
be triggered to protect additionally regulated services before the start of any
insolvency process). ltis likely that it will establish a funding risk pool raised
from levies on providers.

NHS Southwark Response to the Consultation

The consultation on all four documents runs until 11 October. NHS
Southwark will be making a response and is liaising with Southwark Council to
discuss where our views may align. A draft of the response is not available at
the time of writing but the content of the draft will be discussed at the Scrutiny
Committee meeting by which time a draft will have been written.



Agenda ltem 9

73

Trigger template for standard variations to health services

NHS Trust & lead officer contacts:

Alastair Gourlay — Programme Director — Estates Strategy
Paul Tiernan — Programme Manager — Cancer Programme
Deirdre Conn — Project Manager — Cancer Treatment Centre

020 7188 5371
020 7188 9564
020 7188 4487

Trigger

Please comment as applicable

Reasons for the change

What change is being proposed?

Currently, patients requiring outpatient radiotherapy and chemotherapy for cancer
treatment receive this care in a variety of locations across Guy’s & St Thomas’
sites.

It is proposed to build a new Cancer Treatment Centre at Guy’s Hospital which
will bring together all outpatient radiotherapy chemotherapy and supportive care
services across the two hospitals into one location.

Radiotherapy is provided using Linear Accelerators (Linacs). Currently the Trust
treats approximately 3000 pts /year on 6 Linacs.

Why is this being proposed?

This change will improve the patients experience by providing services in
purpose built facilities in one location.

The facilities will accommodate up to date equipment to provide the best care. It
will also increase capacity to meet the increasing demand for cancer treatment.
The future requirement is for 4000 pts to be treated which requires an increase to
11 Linacs.

What stage is the proposal at and what
is the planned timescale for the
change(s)?

The proposal is at the Outline Business Case stage and if approved in
September ,a Full Business Case will then be developed. If approved the plan is
to open the building in 2014.

Are you planning to consult on this?

Patients and the public are being involved in the design process. Models and
pictures of the proposed building (part of a RIBA run competition) will be
displayed in strategic areas around the Trust site and community locations
including Southwark council offices. People are being asked for their comments
on these designs. There will be a patient and public engagement plan developed
as part of the Full Business Case process in 2011.

Are changes proposed to the
accessibility to services?

Briefly describe

Changes in opening times for a service

The aim is to open the building from 0800-2000 which will increase the number of
patients that can be treated .

Withdrawal of in-patient, out-patient,

day patient or diagnostic facilities for
one or more speciality from the same
location

None

Relocating an existing service

Radiotherapy and outpatients will relocate from 4 different departments across
Guy’s & St Thomas’ to one department in the proposed cancer treatment centre.

Changing methods of accessing a
service such as the appointment system
etc.

Most patients requiring Radiotherapy and outpatient care will receive this in one
location at Guy’s hospital rather than a variety of locations which will be less
confusing.

Impact on health inequalities - reduced
or improved access to all sections of the
community e.g. older people; people
with learning difficulties/physical and
sensory disabilities/mental health
needs; black and ethnic minority
communities; lone parents.

There is an unmet need for Radiotherapy in the community affecting many
groups of patients, particularly older people.

The CTC will provide an increase in the availability of Radiotherapy and improve
access.




74

What patients will be affected?

Briefly describe:

Changes that affect a local or the whole
population, or a particular area in the
borough.

All patient across Lambeth and Southwark and Kent requiring outpatient care and
radiotherapy for cancer will equally benefit from this proposed change.

Changes that affect a group of patients
accessing a specialised service

The co-location of services within the CTC will mean that patients will not have to
move around between departments on the Guys site or move between Guy’s and
St Thomas’ site as much as they do now.

Changes that affect particular as above
communities or groups

Are changes proposed to the Briefly describe:
methods of service delivery?

Moving a service into a community n/a

setting rather than being hospital based

or vice versa

Delivering care using new technology n/a

Reorganising services at a strategic n/a

level

What impact is foreseeable on the Briefly describe:

wider community?

Impact on other services (e.g. children’s
/ adult social care)

There is no foreseeable impact on the wider community.




Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee:

Work Programme Outline 2010/11 — working draft

Meeting date

Agenda item

Wednesday 30 June 2010

Introductory briefings

Proposed variation: vascular surgery services (KHP)
Albany Midwives deputation

Restructure of drug and alcohol services - Marina House
Work programme

Wednesday 6 October 2010

arON =

Restructure of drug and alcohol services - Marina House

SLAM disinvestment

Policy summaries: i) Health White Paper, ii) Public sector equality duty consultation
Key review - ElAs

Proposed service variations: Cancer treatment centre (GSTT)

Monday 29 November 2010

Cabinet member interview
Continue key review(s)
Proposed service variations

Wednesday 2 February 2011

Continue key review(s)
Proposed service variations

Wednesday 23 March 2011

Quality Accounts?
Continue key review(s)
Proposed service variations

Wednesday 4 May 2011

Final report(s)

0} way epusby

G/



76 Agenda Annex

This page is intentionally blank.



DISTRIBUTION LIST

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/11

HEALTH & ADULT CARE SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE

Original held by Scrutiny Team; please notify amendments to ext.: 57291

OPEN COPIES COPIES
Members of the Sub-Committee:
Councillor Neil Coyle (Chair) 1 | Southwark Health and Social Care
Councillor David Noakes (Vice-chair) 1 | Susannah White, Chief Executive and Strategic Dir.
Councillor Michael Bukola 1 | Health & Community Services 1
Councillor Denise Capstick 1 | Malcolm Hines, Deputy Chief Executive & Dir. Finance 1
Councillor Darren Merrill 1 | Jane Fryer, Medical Director 1
Councillor Vikki Mills 1 | Andrew Bland, Dir. Primary Care Development 1
Councillor Emmanuel Oyewole 1 | Ann Marie Connolly, Director of Public Health 1
Lesley Humber, Dir. H&SC Provider Services 1
Councillor Poddy Clark [Reserve] 1 | Donna Kinnair, Director of Nursing & Commissioning 1
Councillor Dan Garfield [Reserve] 1 | Sarah McClinton, Deputy Dir. Adult Social Care 1
Councillor Eliza Mann [Reserve] 1 | Sean Morgan, Dir. Performance & Corporate Affairs 1
Councillor Althea Smith [Reserve] 1 | Rosemary Watts, Head of Patient Experience 1
1

CABINET MEMBERS

Councillor Peter John [Leader of the Council]
Councillor lan Wingfield [Deputy Leader]

Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle [Health & Adult Social Care]

Councillor Lisa Rajan [Chair, OSC]

Local study libraries

Shelley Burke, Head of Overview & Scrutiny
Sarah Feasey, Legal Officer

Cathryn Grimshaw, Legal Officer

Health Partners

Stuart Bell, CE, South London & Maudsley NHS Trust
Patrick Gillespie, Southwark Service Director, SLaM
Jo Kent, Deputy Service Director, SLaM

Marian Ridley, Guy’s & St Thomas’ NHS FT

Michael Parker, Chair, KCH Hospital NHS Trust

Phil Boorman, Stakeholder Relations Manager, KCH
Jacob West, Strategy Director KCH

Julie Gifford, Prog. Manager External Partnerships,
GSTT

—_

1

_ AW

R\ P N G i U

Harjinder Bahra, Equalities and Human Rights

Southwark Health & Community Services secretariat

Hilary Payne 1
Janet Henry 1
EXTERNAL

Tom White, Southwark Pensioners’ Action Group 1
Southwark LINk 1
Scrutiny Team [Spares] 8

TOTAL HARD COPY DISTRIBUTION 52

HARD COPIES OF THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE ON REQUEST FROM THE SCRUTINY TEAM TEL: 0207 525 7291




	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Appendix A: Presentation from King's Health Partners

	5 Restructure of drug and alcohol services
	NHS Southwark 26 August response
	Background papers from Tom White, Southwark Pensioners' Action Group

	6 Restructure of SLaM services
	SLaM disinvestment re-consultation paper

	7 New policy briefings
	9 Consultations
	10 Work programme
	
	

